
 
November 21, 2012           Agenda 
 

1 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours.

A G E N D A  
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
NOVEMBER 21, 2012 

Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 

Imperial Beach, CA  91932 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, 
please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
AGENDA CHANGES  
MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS/ 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 
PUBLIC COMMENT - Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the posted 
agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an item not 
scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed on a future 
agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS (1) 
None.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.5) - All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be 
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these 
items, unless a Councilmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
discussed at the end of the Agenda.   

2.1 MINUTES. 
 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the Special Workshop 

Meeting of July 11, 2012, the Special Closed Session Meeting of November 7, 2012 and 
the Regular City Council Meeting of November 7, 2012. 

Continued on Next Page 

  



November 21, 2012          Agenda 
  

2 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable 

Numbers 81459 through 81548 with a subtotal amount of $1,564,581.12 and Payroll 
Checks/Direct Deposit 44952 through 44973 for P.P.E. 11/01/12 for a subtotal amount of 
$140,740.63 for a total amount of $1,705,321.75 

2.3 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7273 AWARDING A TEMPORARY CUSTODIAL CONTRACT 
TO JANI-KING OF CALIFORNIA, INC.  (0900-20) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 
2.4 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7271 APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE SIDELETTER OF 

AGREEMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 221 (SEIU).   
(0540-50) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

2.5 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7268 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A 
COMMITMENT LETTER TO THE 2012 RECOVERY STRATEGY FOR THE TIJUANA 
RIVER VALLEY.  (0770-87) 

 City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3) 
 

ORDINANCES – SECOND READING & ADOPTION (4.1) 
4.1 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1131, CHAPTER 13.14 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO THE REGULATION OF FATS, OILS AND GREASE 
DISPOSAL IN THE SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM AND AMENDING SECTION 
13.04.040 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE.  (0830-95) 
City Manager’s Recommendation: 
1. Receive report; 
2. Mayor calls for the reading of the title of Ordinance No. 2012-1131 "ADDING 

CHAPTER 13.14 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO 
THE REGULATION OF FATS, OILS AND GREASE DISPOSAL IN THE SEWER 
COLLECTION SYSTEM AND AMENDING SECTION 13.04.040 OF THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE”;   

3. City Clerk to read Ordinance 2012-1131; and 
4. Motion to dispense with the second reading, to waive further reading, and adopt 

Ordinance No. 2012-1131 by title only. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (5.1) 
5.1  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7272 IMPLEMENTING THE PROVISIONS OF SENATE BILL 

1186.  (0390-40 & 0390-95) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:   
1. Conduct a public hearing in accordance with Government Code section 66018; 
2. Receive report and public testimony; 
3. Close the public hearing; 
4. Adopt Resolution 2012-7272 Approving the collection of a $1 state fee imposed 

pursuant to the provisions of Senate Bill 1186; and 
5. Authorize a supplemental of $2,200 for FY 2012-13 in the Community Development, 

Building Division to cover the costs of implementing the CASp program. The funds 
are dedicated to pay for the costs for training and certification of existing staff to 
become an access specialist (CASp), to develop “best practices” guidelines, and to 
pay for development of more educational and training resources to promote 
compliance with ADA.    



November 21, 2012          Agenda 
  

3 
 

REPORTS (6.1-6.4) 
6.1  DESIGN REVIEW BOARD – THREE (3) TERMS EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2012.  

(0120-30) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:   
1. Mayor recommend reappointment of members Janet Bowman, Shirley Nakawatase, 

and Harold Phelps to the Design Review Board in accordance with Chapter 
2.18.010.C of the I.B.M.C.  New terms of office shall begin January 1, 2013 and 
expire December 31, 2016; and  

2. City Council approve Mayor’s appointment selections to the Design Review Board. 

6.2  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7267 AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH THE SAN DIEGO UNIFIED 
PORT DISTRICT (PORT DISTRICT) FOR THE ALLOCATION AND USE OF UP TO 
$150,000 OF THE PORT DISTRICT’S APPROVED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2014-2018 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
DATE AVENUE STREET END IMPROVEMENT.  (0150-70 & 0720-20) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

6.3  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7269, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH CREATING THE TEMPORARY POSITION OF SPECIAL 
PROJECTS MANAGER AND ADOPTING THE JOB DESCRIPTION; AND 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7270, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH APPOINTING MICHAEL MCGRANE AS SPECIAL 
PROJECTS MANAGER AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
SPECIAL PROJECTS MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT.   
(0510-20 & 0530-50) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:  Adopt resolutions. 

6.4  AFFIRMATION OF ADVERTISEMENT OF REQUEST FOR BIDS (RFB) FOR THE 
ECO-BIKEWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECT (CIP S05-104).  (0680-20) 
City Manager’s Recommendation:   
1. Receive report. 
2. Discuss the pros and cons of affirming staff action; and 
3. Authorize staff to proceed with the advertisement and opening of bids as described 

herein. 
 

I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (7.1) 
7.1 2003 TAX ALLOCATION BOND - NOVEMBER 2012 DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT.  

(0418-50) 
 City Manager’s Recommendation:  That the Successor Agency and City Council provide 

direction on options to address the debt service payment. 
 

ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 

ADJOURNMENT 
The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 

involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 
FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 

VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 
www.cityofib.com. 

 
          /s/    

Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 



MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
JULY 11, 2012 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
Community Room (Behind City Hall) 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Special Workshop Meeting to order at 6:10 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers present:  Bilbray, King, Bragg 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem present:  Spriggs  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
DERIC FERNANDEZ spoke in support of infrastructure improvements along Seacoast Drive, 
particularly pedestrian scale street lighting.  He asked the experts to comment on the impacts 
pedestrian scale street lighting has on safety, property values and the potential for business 
investment and improvements. 
 
REPORTS 
1. DISCUSSION ON CITY FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY AND ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT.  (0100-10) 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE introduced the following panelists: 

• Gerald M. Trimble, Managing Principal, Keyser Marston Associates, Inc.  
• Sherman D. Harmer, Jr., President, Urban Housing Partners 
• Stephen M. Haase, Senior Vice President, Forward Planning, Baldwin & Sons 
• Brett Miller, Chief Executive Officer, Eat Drink and Sleep  
• Linville C. Martin, Real Estate Broker/Consultant – specializing in leasing and retail 

and gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item. 
 
ALLISON ROLFE, Project Manager for Pacifica Companies, asked the panel what can be done 
to rebrand Imperial Beach.  
 
ROBIN CLEGG spoke about the lack of good restaurants and retail businesses along Seacoast 
Drive.  She suggested that office spaces be located upstairs with retail businesses located 
downstairs.  
 
BOB MILLER expressed concern about a gap between the opening of the new hotel and 
improvements to existing local businesses.  The Seacoasters Group is working with local 
businesses to encourage them to make exterior and interior improvements.  He spoke of the 
need to offer hotel guests a nighttime atmosphere and a reason to return to Imperial Beach. 

DRAFT Item No. 2.1 



Page 2 of 4 
I.B. City Council & Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Special Workshop Minutes 
July 11, 2012 

 
City Council, along with City Staff and panelists discussed many ideas about economic 
development and came up with the following list of ideas:   
 
1. Without redevelopment, non-governmental stakeholders will need to do more through 

special districts 
2. Adopt commercial zoning and then explore amendments about height and other changes.  

What other zoning changes can be done to encourage development? 
3. Growing property taxes is slow, but let’s look into the possibility of New Market Tax Credits.  
4. Work with small businesses to retain and improve their businesses. 

a. Meet with Chamber, BID and others to see what they believe would improve their 
businesses as well as hindrances that we could reduce. 

b. Learn more about the “Go Local” programs in Santa Rosa and Bellingham.  Copy 
what we like. 

5. Review city regulations, simplify and reduce them.  
6. Ask Seacoast property owners if they want to create an assessment district for lighting, 

street and sidewalk cleaning, landscaping, public safety, and anything else. 
7. Are there realistic ways to simplify and reduce building codes without harming the public’s 

safety? 
8. Assign staff to high priority projects to make sure they happen as quickly as possible.  
9. Seek Council’s early comments on projects so developers can receive feedback.  
10. How to best let developers know that we’re interested in public-private partnerships to make 

things happen?   
a. Marketing, personal outreach—knock on doors 
b. List all the tools we can that may prove helpful 

11. Learn more about infrastructure districts and how the pending legislation may affect them. 
12. Streamline entitlement process—explain how the program EIR works and again let the world 

know we have it.  
13. How can we make the pedestrian experience more pleasant and fun in certain areas?   
14. How best to market? 

a. To outside developers and businesses 
b. To the general public about Imperial Beach 
c. To businesses in Imperial Beach 

Who should be responsible for marketing?  The Chamber? The BID?  Other coalition of 
businesses? 
What coalitions can be formed around the many opportunities—bicycling, hiking, nature 
walks, ocean, the bay, the new hotel, Seacoasters, horseback riding. 
What organizations to involve in addition to the Chamber and BID—Seacoasters, the 
YMCA—Camp Surf, the Port’s activation program, Seacoast Inn—Pacifica, Estuary staff, 
sailing and kayaking along the Strand, horse stables, Farmers Market, entertainment 
groups—who/what else? 

15. Programming of events—see # 14 ideas 
a. How can we simplify our processing of events, make it less costly and  much faster?   

16. Explore the feasibility of waiving development fees as well as make sure they cover impacts 
of development.  

17. Finish survey of properties that present opportunities for development. 
18. Contact property owners identified under #17.  Work with them individually and well as in 

groups for assembly of land so it’s more likely to be developed.  Link property owners to 
potential developers. 



Page 3 of 4 
I.B. City Council & Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Special Workshop Minutes 
July 11, 2012 

 
19. Issues RFPs for property owners willing to partner with developers.  
20. Signage: wayfaring signs, flags, banners.  This is something that could be done through an 

assessment district.  
21. Music events/ concerts—This goes with the programming/marketing actions.  
22. Close the gap of quality and service between the new hotel and its surroundings.  How?  

Must involve business people in the vicinity, Chamber and BID. 
23. Let’s get a map of the BID boundaries. 
24. Explain how BID can work to promote its businesses. 
25. How can the Chamber and BID be strengthened or create alternative organizations. 
26. Can business unite to offer discount coupons through the hotel and each other?  
27. How to make the hotel a hub of community and business activity?  How to unify work and 

cooperation among the estuary, Camp Surf, the hotel,  Sports Park, the Port, Bicycle 
Village, the Chula Vista Nature Center, and other South Bay activities.   Also need to link to 
other San Diego activities such as SeaWorld, Old Town, the Zoo, Balboa Park, Safari Park, 
etc.. 

28. How to breakdown the psychological and physical distance between IB and the San Diego 
region? 

29. How to link more with Tijuana and points south? 
30. Neighborhoods—what incentives can we create to continue to improve neighborhoods? 

a. Home improvement loans available to people of all incomes, energy efficiencies 
b. Trees along parkways and on properties 
c. Maintain high quality streets and sidewalks 
d. Can we, should we re-energize neighborhood associations to do more for 

themselves? 
e. Alley paving special districts. 
f. Landscaping, lighting districts 

31. In terms of “commercial neighborhoods” 
a. Along Palm Ave- 

i. Work with vacant property owners—Burger King, automotive parts place, 
Marissa’s site, other properties identified on map. 

ii. What can be done at Bernardo Shores and El Camino sites? 
iii. Continue work to make Sudberry development happen 
iv. Jim Algert’s trailer park? 
v. Other properties on Old Palm 

b. Seacoast Drive 
i. What are the businesses willing to do to help themselves? 
ii. Mundt property 
iii. Port properties and properties adjacent to Port property—bring owners together 

to create more value, investments and development 
iv. Would Pacifica be interested in working with properties across the street? 

c. Bayfront 
i. Continue work to make Bicycle Village happen 
ii. Pond 20 
iii. Bernardo Shores/ El Camino 
iv. Work with Port, federal and state agencies to get  water access from IB to the 

Bay 
 



Page 4 of 4 
I.B. City Council & Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Special Workshop Minutes 
July 11, 2012 

 
City Manager Brown stated that staff would return to City Council at a future meeting with the 
next steps. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MAYOR JANNEY adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 

 
      
James C. Janney, Mayor 

 
 
      
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 



 

MINUTES 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
NOVEMBER 7, 2012 

 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

 
SPECIAL MEETING – 5:45 P.M. 

 
CLOSED SESSION CALL TO ORDER 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Special Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:53 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers present:  Bragg 
Councilmembers absent:  Bilbray, King 
Mayor present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem present:  Spriggs 
Staff present: City Manager Brown; Deputy City Attorney Parks; 
  City Clerk Hald 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
MOTION BY BRAGG, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
UNDER:  
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (b)(3)(C) 
(5 cases)  

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: 
Agency designated representatives: City Manager, Assistant City Manager, City Attorney 
Employee Organization: SEIU 

 
MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
MAYOR JANNEY adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 5:54 p.m. and he reconvened the 
meeting to Open Session at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Reporting out of Closed Session, DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY PARKS announced City Council 
discussed Item Nos. 1 and 2, City Council gave direction and no reportable action was taken. 
 

DRAFT 
ITEM NO. 2.1 



Page 2 of 2 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Special Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Janney adjourned the meeting at 6:01 p.m. 
 
 

      
James C. Janney, Mayor 

 
 
      
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 



 

MINUTES 
 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
NOVEMBER 7, 2012 

 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK  
Councilmembers present:  Bragg, Bilbray 
Councilmembers absent:  King 
Mayor present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem present:  Spriggs 
Staff present: City Manager Brown; Deputy City Attorney Parks;  
  City Clerk Hald 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MAYOR JANNEY led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
AGENDA CHANGES 
MOTION BY BRAGG, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO REMOVE ITEM NO. 6.2 AND SCHEDULE 
IT FOR A FUTURE AGENDA.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS/ 
REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG commended City Clerk Hald for her efforts on the 2012 Election. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY congratulated Councilmember-Elect Bobby Patton on a successful campaign. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 
None. 
 

DRAFT 
ITEM NO. 2.1 



Page 2 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The following submitted speaker slips in support of the I.B. Little League and/or I.B. Girls 
Softball (they did not wish to speak): 
JAVIER GAMOA 
STACEY (last name not provided) 
BRIAN COOK 
NICK MURNIGHAN 
MATTHEW MCCOY 
KAREN ODERMATT 
REGINA GARRISON 
VALERIE ACEVEZ 
DON SPICER 
TONY PADILLA 
CHRIS PADILLA 
BRIAN POLTE 
TIM O’NEAL 
DANYALL BISHOP 
ERICKA RALL 
DOROTHY WEAKLEY 
 
DOROTHY WEEKLY spoke in support of I.B. Girls Softball and I.B. Little League.  She asked 
City Council to consider their contracts and was opposed to privatizing the Sports Park. 
 
JERRI WENINO, volunteer with I.B. Little League, asked City Council to review their contract 
and was opposed to privatizing the Sports Park. 
 
SHAWNA CHALMERS submitted a speaker slip in support of the I.B. Little League and/or the 
I.B. Girls Softball (she did not wish to speak).  
 
ELIZABETH MCKAY, volunteer for I.B. Little League, stated that the I.B. Little League never 
received a response from the City regarding their contract submittal, she supported discussions 
involving all interested parties, she questioned the terms of the Jessops contract and noted that 
the I.B. Little League did a majority of the work relating to the ball fields, she believed that the 
Sports Park has been mismanaged and she questioned the negotiation process and if it went 
out to bid. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY announced that a letter stating the City’s position and a letter stating the 
YMCA’s position were sent to both the I.B. Little League and I.B. Girls Softball.  He noted that 
the City is trying to bring the best benefit to the citizens of Imperial Beach and open discussions 
on the matter are anticipated for January or February 2013. 
 
PRESENTATIONS (1) 
None.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.4)  
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 
NOS. 2.1 THRU 2.4.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 



Page 3 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
2.1 MINUTES. 
 Approved the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2012. 
2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Ratified the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 81340 through 81458 with a 

subtotal amount of $1,453,048.70 and Payroll Checks/Direct Deposit 44907 through 
44951 for a subtotal amount of $306,205.03 for a total amount of $1,759,253.73. 

2.3 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7264 AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH TO 
PARTICIPATE IN A REGIONAL WASTE TIRE ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM IN 
PARTNERSHIP WITH THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO – SOLID WASTE LOCAL 
ENFORCEMENT AGENCY – AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO TO ACT 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY 
GRANT DOCUMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECURING GRANT FUNDS AND TO 
IMPLEMENT AND CARRY OUT THE WORK SPECIFIED IN THE GRANT THROUGH 
JUNE 30, 2017.  (0270-30) 

 Adopted resolution. 
2.4 RESOLUTION NUMBER 2012-7263, APPROVING A THREE-YEAR EXTENSION TO 

THE REGIONAL COMMUNICATION SYSTEM PARTICIPATING AGENCY 
AGREEMENT FOR RADIO COMMUNICATIONS IN SAN DIEGO AND IMPERIAL 
COUNTIES.  ( 0210-10) 

 Adopted resolution. 
 
ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3.1-3.2) 
3.1  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1132 REPEALING CHAPTER 8.08 AND ADDING A NEW 

CHAPTER 8.08 TO TITLE 8 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE 
CONCERNING PERMANENT AND MOBILE FOOD FACILITIES.  (0240-28) 

  
CITY MANAGER BROWN introduced the item. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE reported on the item. 
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN stated that he will find out if mobile food vendors pay sales tax. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY called for the first reading of the title of Ordinance No. 2012-1132. 
 
CITY CLERK HALD read the title of Ordinance No. 2012-1132 “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH, CALIFORNIA, REPEALING CHAPTER 8.08 
AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 8.08 TO TITLE 8 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL 
CODE BY ADOPTING BY REFERENCE TITLE 6, DIVISION 1 OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
CODE OF REGULATORY ORDINANCES CONCERNING PERMANENT AND MOBILE FOOD 
FACILITIES.” 
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO DISPENSE FIRST READING AND 
INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1132 BY TITLE ONLY, SCHEDULE A PUBLIC 
HEARING FOR DECEMBER 5, 2012 TO CONSIDER THE SECOND READING AND 
ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1132 AND DIRECT STAFF TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF 
THE PUBLIC HEARING AS PRESENTED TO THE COUNCIL.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE 
FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 



Page 4 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
3.2 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1131, CHAPTER 13.14 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO THE REGULATION OF FATS, OILS AND GREASE 
DISPOSAL IN THE SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM AND AMENDING SECTION 
13.04.040 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE.  (0830-95) 

 
CITY MANAGER BROWN introduced the item. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER HELMER gave a PowerPoint presentation on the 
item. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY called for the first reading of the title of Ordinance No. 2012-1131. 
 
CITY CLERK HALD read the title of Ordinance No. 2012-1131 “ADDING CHAPTER 13.14 OF 
THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO THE REGULATION OF FATS, OILS 
AND GREASE DISPOSAL IN THE SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM AND AMENDING 
SECTION 13.04.040 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE.” 
  
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO DISPENSE FIRST READING AND 
INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1131 BY TITLE ONLY AND SET THE MATTER 
FOR ADOPTION AT THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
NOVEMBER 21, 2012.  
 
MAYOR PRO TEM SPRIGGS suggested that staff provide additional notice to the business 
community. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG announced the next Chamber Board meeting is scheduled for 
November 14, 2012.   
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN responded staff will inform the BID and Chamber of Commerce of 
this item. 
 
VOTES WERE NOW CAST ON ORIGINAL MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, 
TO DISPENSE FIRST READING AND INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2012-1131 BY 
TITLE ONLY AND SET THE MATTER FOR ADOPTION AT THE NEXT REGULARLY 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 21, 2012.  MOTION CARRIED BY 
THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READING & ADOPTION (4) 
None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (5.1) 
5.1  ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7262 APPROVING THE IMPERIAL BEACH 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
LEVYING OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT FOR THE 
DISTRICT PURSUANT TO THE PARKING AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 
LAW OF 1989. (0465-20) 

 
MAYOR JANNEY declared the public hearing open. 



Page 5 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN reported on the item. 
 
In response to Councilmember Bragg, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE explained that the 
BID funds collected were drastically lower (Item 8 of the Annual Report) because the City was 
holding on to some of the assessments until the BID presented the Annual Report to the City 
before releasing the funds. 
 
MIKE OSBOURNE, President of the BID, concurred with the comments made by Assistant City 
Manager Wade.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG asked Mr. Osbourne to revise Item 8 to actually reflect the reason 
for the lower BID collection of funds.  
 
In response to Councilmember Bragg, MIKE OSBOURNE stated that the Chamber of 
Commerce does not endorse candidates.   
 
MAYOR PRO TEM SPRIGGS questioned if the BID planned on broadly promoting the City and 
partnering with Pier South to promote the grand opening of the hotel.   
 
MIKE OSBOURNE stated that there is concern about focusing attention on one particular 
business rather that the full BID. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY informed Mr. Osbourne that it is not necessary to wait until November of the 
next year to approach City Council about changes to the budget.  The BID can approach City 
Council on an as needed basis to amend their budget.   
 
CITY CLERK HALD announced no public speaker slips were submitted. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7262 
APPROVING THE IMPERIAL BEACH BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ANNUAL 
REPORT AND AUTHORIZING THE LEVYING OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 ANNUAL 
ASSESSMENT FOR THE DISTRICT PURSUANT TO THE PARKING AND BUSINESS 
IMPROVEMENT AREA LAW OF 1989.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
REPORTS (6.1-6.2) 
6.1  QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE 4TH QUARTER OF FY 2011-2012 AS 

OF JUNE 30, 2012 (0350-90) 
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN introduced the item. 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR VONACHEN gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item. 
 



Page 6 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
In response to Mayor Pro Tem Spriggs question about investing more into U.S. Corporate 
Bonds due to a higher yield, FINANCE DIRECTOR VONACHEN stated that there are 
opportunities to restructure the City’s portfolio and she gave a brief overview of the regulations 
for holding U.S. Corporate Bonds. 
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN added there is a fine balance when giving consideration to safety, 
liquidity and yield.   
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7265 
REVIEWING AND CONSIDERING THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE 4TH 
QUARTER OF THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE 
FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
6.2  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7267 AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH THE SAN DIEGO UNIFIED 
PORT DISTRICT (PORT DISTRICT) FOR THE ALLOCATION AND USE OF UP TO 
$150,000 OF THE PORT DISTRICT’S APPROVED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2014-2018 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
DATE AVENUE STREET END IMPROVEMENT.  ( 0150-70 & 0720-20) 

 
Item removed from agenda by prior City Council action. 
 
I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (7.1) 
7.1 INVESTMENT POLICY – FY 2012-2013 UPDATE.  (0350-95) 
 
CITY MANAGER BROWN introduced the item. 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR VONACHEN gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item.   
 
MAYOR PRO TEM SPRIGGS suggested that Ms. VonAchen look at other municipalities and/or 
check with the League of California Cities to see if Imperial Beach is adhering to better 
practices.  He questioned what the better investment advisors are doing and who they are and 
suggested that this information be brought back at the next quarterly report. 
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2012-7266 
ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE INVESTMENT POLICY UPDATE FOR FY 2012-2013.  
MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. SA-12-17 
ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE INVESTMENT POLICY UPDATE FOR FY 2012-2013.  
MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: BRAGG, SPRIGGS, JANNEY 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: BILBRAY, KING 
 



Page 7 of 7 
City Council & IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - DRAFT 
November 7, 2012 
 
ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Janney adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 

      
James C. Janney, Mayor 

 
 
      
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 















































































MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between 

THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 

Imperial Beach, CA. 91932 

And 

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU) 
LOCAL221 

* 

4004 Kearny Mesa Road 
San Diego, CA. 92111 

TERM: 

July 1, 2011- June 30,2013 

FINAL 

* * * * 

ATTACHMENT 3 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 

Preamble 

Article 1.0 Management Rights 

Article 2.0 Employee Rights. 

Article 3.0 Responsibilities of the Union. 

Article 4.0 Unfair Employee Relations Practices 

Article 5.0 Grievance Procedure. . 

Article 6.0 Discharge of Other Disciplinary Action. 

Article 7.0 General Provisions 

Article 8.0 Out of Classification Pay. 

Article 9.0 Hours of Work. 

Article 10.0 Sick Leave and Industrial Accident Benefits 

Article 11.0 Holiday and Vacation Benefits. 

Article 12.0 Holiday Furlough Program 

Article 13.0 Insurance Benefits 

Article 14.0 Uniforms 

Article 15.0 Salaries. 

Article 16.0 Retirement Benefits 

Article 17.0 State Disability Insurance 

Article 18.0 Re-negotiation . 

Article 19.0 Implementation 

Article 20.0 Emergency 

Article 21.0 Savings Clause. 

PAGE 

4 

4 

5 

5 

5 

6 

6 

6 

9 

9 

11 

11 

13 

14 

16 

17 

17 

18 

18 

18 

18 

18 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page3 

Article 22.0 Agreement Review 

Article 23.0 Safety Program 

Article 24.0 Smoking 

Article 25.0 Educational Benefits 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Article 26.0 Employee Assistance Program 

Article 27.0 Service Fee 

Article 28.0 Labor Management Committee 

Article 29.0 Term . 

Article 30.0 Catastrophic Leave 

Article 31.0 Actuarial 

Article 32.0 Payroll Policies 

Article 33.0 Other Miscellaneous Provisions. 

Article 34.0 Strikes and Other Concerted Activities 

Exhibits: 

Article X - Grievance Procedure 
Article IX - Disciplinary Procedure 
Article VII, Section 4 - Vacation Leave 

19 

19 

19 

19 

20 

20 

22 

22 

22 

22 

22 

23 

24 

Exhibit "A" 
Exhibit "B" 
Exhibit "C" 
Exhibit "D" 
Exhibit "E" 
Exhibit "F" 
Exhibit "G" 
Exhibit "H" 

SEIU Recognition ofMiscellaneous Service Classifications- FY 09-10 & 10-11 
City's Salary & Compensation Plan, Effective July 1, 2011 
City Section 125 Election Documents 
City Manager Memorandum- Stand by Pay Authorization 
Alternative 9/80 Work Schedule Side Letter & Policy 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page4 

Preamble 

Representatives of the City of Imperial Beach and the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 
Local 221, have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours and other terms and conditions of 
employment and have exchanged freely information, opinions and proposals in a sincere effort to reach 
agreement on all matters relating to the employment conditions and employer-employee relations of such 
employees. 

This Memorandum of Understanding hereinafter referred to as "M.O.U" is entered into pursuant to the 
Meyers-Millas-Brown Act (Government Code Section 3500-3511) and has been jointly prepared by the 
parties. 

This M.O.U shall constitute the whole and entire ex1stmg agreement for salary and fringe benefits 
applicable to members of the SEIU Local 221 hereinafter referred to as "UNION", and it supersedes all 
prior agreements, commitments, and practices. 

It is understood by the parties that part-time seasonal employees continue to be entitled to the benefits that 
they were receiving as of the effective date of this agreement. It is further understood that those benefits 
which the part-time seasonal employees are not currently receiving will not apply to them for the duration 
of this agreement, with the exception ofbenefits contained in this agreement. 

This M.O.U. shall be presented to the Imperial Beach City Council as the joint recommendations of the 
undersigned for employee salary and fringe benefits adjustments for a two-year (2) period commencing 
July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013. 

The CITY recognizes that the UNION is the sole and exclusive bargaining agent and representative of the 
City's Miscellaneous Classified Service which are currently in the bargaining unit or which may later be 
added pursuant to the Imperial Beach Employer-Employee Relations Policy and State Law. All UNION 
representative classifications are referenced in Exhibit "D" of this agreement. 

Article 1.0 Management Rights 

It is agreed that the City of Imperial Beach, hereafter to be referred to as the "CITY" has the exclusive 
right to determine the mission of each of its constituent departments, divisions, boards, and commissions; 
to set standards of selection for employment and promotion; to exercise control and discretion over its 
organization and operations; to direct its employees and to take disciplinary action for proper cause; to 
relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or other legitimate reasons; to maintain the 
efficiency of governmental operations; to determine the methods, means and personnel by which 
government operations are to be conducted; to determine the context of job classifications; to take all 
necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and to exercise complete control and discretion 
over the technology of performing its work. 

The exercise of such rights shall be reasonable and shall not preclude employees of the SEIU Local 221 
hereafter to be referred to as the "UNION", from meeting and conferring with management 
representatives about the effect that these decisions may have on matters pertaining to wages, hours, and 
other terms and conditions of employment. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page5 

Article 2.0 Employee Rights 

It is agreed that each individual employee shall have the following rights which he/she may exercise in 
accordance with applicable laws, ordinances, and rules and regulations: 

a. The right to form, join, and participate in the activities of employee organizations of 
his/her own choosing for the purpose of representation on matters of his/her employee 
relations with the CITY, or to refuse to join or participate in the activities of any 
organization. 

b. The right to be free from interference, intimidation, restraint, coercion, discrimination, or 
reprisal on the part of his/her department head, his/her supervisor, or other employees, or 
employees organizations, with respect to his/her membership or non-membership in any 
employee organization or with respect to any lawful activity associated therewith which 
is within the scope of representation. 

c. The right to represent himself/herself individually in his/her employee relations with the 
CITY or through an authorized UNION representative. 

It is agreed that whenever a CITY employee desires to represent himself/herself in consulting with CITY 
management during his/her regular hours of work, he/she shall first request and obtain from his/her 
department head permission to take time off to do so, which permission shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

Article 3.0 Responsibilities of the Union 

Recognizing the crucial role of the CITY in the preservation of the public health, safety and welfare of a 
free society, the UNION agrees that it will take all reasonable steps to cause the employees covered by 
this agreement, individually and collectively, to perform all of their assigned duties, rendering loyal and 
efficient service to the very best of their abilities. 

The UNION, therefore, agrees that there shall be no interruption of these services for any cause 
whatsoever by the employees it represent; nor shall there be any concerted failure by them to report for 
duty; nor shall they absent themselves from their work or abstain, in whole or in part, from the full, 
faithful, and proper performance of all the duties of their employment. 

The UNION further agrees that it shall not encourage any strikes, sit-downs, stay-ins, slow downs, 
stoppages of work, malingering, or any acts that interfere in any manner or to any degree with the 
continuity of all City services during the term of this agreement. 

Article 4.0 Unfair Employee Relations Practices 

1. It is agreed that it shall be unfair employee relations practice for the City and its management 
representatives: 

a. To interfere with, restrain, discriminate, intimidate, or coerce employees in the exercise 
of the rights recognized or granted in the M.O.U. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page6 

b. To dominate or interfere with the formation of any employee organization or contribute 
financial support to it, provided the rights recognized or granted to employee 
organizations in this M.OU. shall not be construed as financial support. 

c. To refuse to meet and confer in good faith with representatives of recognized employee 
organizations on matters within the scope of representation. 

2. It is agreed that it shall be an unfair employee relations practice for the UNION, its 
representatives, or members: 

a. To interfere with, restrain, discriminate, intimidate, or coerce employees in the exercise of the 
rights recognized or granted in the M.O.U. 

b. To refuse to meet and confer in good faith CITY officials on matters within the scope of 
representation. 

c. To refuse to furnish the CITY in writing the names of its representatives, shop stewards and/or 
their alternates. 

Article 5.0 Grievance Procedure 

It is agreed that the UNION shall have the right to assist any employee covered by this M.OU. who 
requests representation of his/her grievance and/or work safety measures for consideration of CITY 
representatives. The City shall release authorized personnel during normal work hours to resolve such 
grievances, and the pay for such personnel will continue during this period, but overtime pay will not be 
authorized. 

It is agreed that the Grievance Procedure shall be as outlined in the attached Exhibit "A" and made part of 
this M.O.U. Refer to Article X- Grievance Procedure, of the City of Imperial Beach Personnel Rules for 
additional information. 

Article 6.0 Discharge or Other Disciplinary Action 

It is agreed that the CITY shall advise the employee involved of his/her right to representation and a 
statement in writing for the reason or reasons for taking any disciplinary action against him/her. 

It is agreed that all appeals relating to disciplinary action shall be submitted in writing to the CITY in 
accordance with Article IX - Disciplinary Procedure, of the City of Imperial Beach Personnel Rules, a 
copy of which is attached as Exhibit "B" and made part of this M.O.U. 

Article 7.0 General Provisions 

1. Dismissal During Probation: It is agreed that the CITY shall have the right to dismiss for cause 
any newly hired employee during the initial twelve (12) month probationary period. Such 
discharge shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure or to the Discipline Procedure of the 
City of Imperial Beach Personnel Rules. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 7 

2. Discrimination: It is agreed that there shall be no discrimination on the part of the CITY or the 
UNION by reason of age, sex, creed, color, national origin, UNION membership or non-UNION 
membership. 

3. Bulletin Boards: It is agreed that the CITY shall provide bulletin boards in the following 
locations which may be used by UNION in posting appropriate UNION notices and 
announcements and related material. 

a. City Hall 
b. Fire Department 
c. Public Works Facility 
d. Lifeguard Station 

4. Personnel Folder: Employees have the right to review their individual personnel folder in the 
presence of the Human Resources Manager or designee. Access shall be scheduled at the 
convenience of the employee and Human Resources Manager or designee. Copies of all 
materials to be included in personnel folders shall be provided to individual employees. 

5. Visitation Rights: It is agreed that the authorized representatives of the ASSOCIATION shall be 
allowed to visit the CITY's work premises for the purpose of ascertaining whether or not this 
M.O.U. is being observed, to have access to the bulletin boards, and the right to be present at any 
meeting between the stewards and the employer. If he/she desires to interview any employee 
privately, he/she shall be permitted to do so during work hours, with the permission of the 
employee's immediate supervisor or superior. The Business Agent or authorized representatives 
shall not interfere with the normal work hours operations or cause unnecessary loss of time to the 
CITY. 

6. Residence Location: It is agreed that the employees shall keep the CITY informed immediately 
of any change of their telephone number and mailing address. The CITY shall be deemed to have 
satisfied all notification requirements under the M.O.U. by attempting to contact the employee 
through the last address of record. 

7. Supervisory Meetings: Any Supervisor covered by this agreement who is required to attend any 
meeting on CITY business either before or after scheduled work hours shall receive 
compensatory time exclusive of travel time. 

8. Training Sessions: In addition, all other departmental personnel shall be required to attend an 
established number of training sessions necessary to job indoctrination and performance, which 
will be on CITY time. 

9. New Employees: The CITY will provide the UNION President and UNION Field Representative 
with names and departments of newly hired employees. 

10. Human Resources Manager: Where questions arise as to the benefits employees may receive 
under the CITY's rules, the employee should direct those questions to the CITY's Human 
Resources Manager. 

11. Mileage Reimbursement: Employees shall be reimbursed at the current rate allowed by the 
Internal Revenue Service for the authorized use of their private vehicle on City business. 
Employees shall also be reimbursed for parking fees paid while using their vehicle on City 
business. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SE/U 
page8 

An employee who uses his/her automobile for City business must provide the m1mmum 
automobile insurance coverage required by the State of California. Evidence of current insurance 
must be on file with the City. 

12. Salary Increases: Salary increases that are based on a known date, such as longevity pay and step 
increase, shall be paid from the first day of the pay period in which the anniversary occurs. 

13. Promotion Salary: Upon promotion, an employee's new pay scale shall be at least 5 percent 
higher or shall fall upon the nearest step within the range of the classification being promoted to, 
whichever is higher. A person can never be paid higher in base salary than the highest step of the 
pay range of the classification to which they are being promoted. 

14. Inoculations: Employees who in the course of their regular duties are exposed to raw sewage will 
receive inoculations as medically necessary at City expense. Those employees who in the course 
of their regular duties may be exposed to sewage contaminated water will be offered inoculations 
as medically appropriate at City expense. 

15. Outsource: The City shall notify the Union prior to issuance of any solicitation of work 
traditionally performed by regular employees of the City. The CITY shall notify the UNION in 
writing thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of any services contract which will require the 
performance of labor previously provided by CITY employees. In such an event, the UNION 
may request in writing the discussion of alternatives to such subcontracting. A request to this 
effect must be received by the City Manager within seven (7) days from receipt by the UNION of 
the aforementioned notice from the CITY. The CITY shall forestall, for a reasonable period of 
time, the implementation of any such services contract to allow for a period of negotiation 
between the CITY and UNION on such alternatives to subcontracting out work previously 
provided by CITY employees. 

16. Bi-lingual Pay Differential: When an employee possesses competent bi-lingual skills, that full
time employee shall be granted $50.00 a month for use of this skill, with part-time employees 
receiving $.40 cents per hour, not to exceed $50 per month. Competence shall be determined by 
an oral and written test mutually agreed to by the CITY and UNION. 

17. Skin Cancer Prevention: The CITY shall make available sunscreen for all employees that spend 
the majority of the workday in an outside environment. The CITY shall provide an annual 
education session on skin cancer, and how to prevent it. 

18. Pay Differential: As designated by the Public Works Director a maximum of two (2) employees 
with Backflow Certification and a maximum of three (3) employees with Hazardous Materials 
Labeling & Packaging Standards Certification shall receive an additional $40 per month to 
maintain and utilize said Certifications for the benefit of the CITY. In addition, as designated by 
the Public Works Director, a maximum of five (5) employees with Collection System 
Maintenance Grade Certification shall receive either $20 per month for Grade 1, $30 per month 
for Grade 2, $40 per month for Grade 3, or $50 per month for Grade 4. 

19. Ergonomics: The City will offer ergonomic equipment to meet the reasonable individual needs of 
employees at a reasonable cost. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page9 

20. Direct Deposit: All employees are encouraged to sign up for direct deposit. If the need arises to 
replace a payroll check for any employee that does not utilize direct deposit, the check will be 
reissued with the next regularly scheduled payroll distribution. 

21. Notary Pay Differential: Effective the first full pay period in July 2011, the City will provide 
$50.00 per month to employees who maintain a public notary and who are designated by the City 
as a Public Notary. 

Article 8.0 Out-of-Classification Pay 

An employee who is assigned in writing to work in a higher classification during the fiscal year for five 
(5) or more cumulative working days within two (2) consecutive pay periods will be paid at the salary 
schedule for the higher classification at the lowest step or 5 percent above the current salary, whichever is 
higher. 

Article 9.0 Hours of Work 

1. Work Week: Eight (8) hours per day for not more than five (5) days per week, forty (40) hours, 
shall constitute a normal workweek for employees of the CITY covered by this agreement. A 
schedule other than eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week may be established with 
mutual agreement by both the affected employees and management. 

The work day will include a minimum thirty (30) minute lunch period and two, fifteen (15) 
minute rest periods in compliance with State regulations. 

Section 1 does not apply to the lifeguard employees' work week schedule. 

2. Alternative 9/80 Schedule: The City and the Union will continue to study the impact and 
feasibility of an alternate 9/80 workweek schedule subject to budget and operational constraints, 
approval of the City Council and vote of the Union membership. Ongoing implementation of 
program is subject to an annual review by City Council of program merits for continued 
consideration subject to operational and financial impacts. (See Exhibit "H") 

3. Overtime Defined: Overtime work shall include only time worked by employees at the request 
of department heads, authorized and approved by the City Manager, and that is in excess of the 
established workday and/or workweek for that class and department provided; however, that 
leave without pay shall not be considered to be work time. 

Lifeguards shall receive overtime only when authorized and approved to work over 40 hours in a 
workweek, provided, however, that leave without pay shall not be considered to be work time. 

4. Overtime Compensation: This overtime shall be compensated by cash payment or by 
compensatory time off at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the regular established rate. The smallest 
unit of time to be used in computing overtime shall be one-quarter (1/4) hour. Pursuant to the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, overtime will be calculated using the regular rate of pay and will 
include all legally required specialty pays. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 10 

Method of compensation shall be determined by the department head. In compliance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the maximum accrual of compensatory time is 240 hours and may be 
carried forward from year to year. 

5. Call-Back Overtime: An employee required to perform call-back overtime shall receive a 
minimum of not less than three (3) hours at one and one half (1-112) times his/her regular range 
for such call-back work, even ifless service is required. 

6. Holidays (Overtime Compensation): Employees required to work on holidays as enumerated in 
this agreement shall be compensated at a rate of two (2) times the regular salary in addition to the 
regular salary for the number of hours worked. 

7. Stand-by Pay: An employee may be required to be on "stand-by" subject to emergency call-back 
overtime after working hours and on weekends and holidays whereby personal time is limited. 
Employees designated to be on stand-by pay shall have a communication device (i.e. cell phone, 
pager, etc.) issued by the authorized Department for the designated stand-by period. Employees 
authorized for stand-by pay shall be compensated at the following rates, as follows: 

a. For a normal work day stand-by shift, pay shall be two (2) hours per day. 
b. For a normal weekend stand-by shift (Saturday or Sunday), pay shall be three (3) hours per 

day. 
c. For a holiday stand-by shift observed in accordance with an employee M.O.U., pay shall be 

four (4) hours per day. 

8. Building inspections on closed Fridays: The position of Building Official and Building and 
Housing Inspector (I or II) will be required to work alternative 9/80 closed Fridays providing 
building inspections. These inspections will be scheduled 24 hours in advance beginning at 7:30 
a.m. in appropriate increments and shall not be scheduled past 11:30 a.m. The position(s) 
providing these inspections shall work a minimum of three (3) hours (or up to five ( 5) hours as 
warranted by the number of inspections scheduled) performing inspections or office work to earn 
a minimum of three (3) hours of over-time or a maximum of five (5) hours of overtime. If no 
inspections are requested on a 9/80 closed Friday then no hours shall be worked. If all field 
inspection work is completed prior to the three-hour minimum, the employee shall have the 
option to work less than the three (3) hours (and be paid for actual over-time hours worked) or 
continue to work in the office to earn the minimum three-hours of overtime. 

9. Travel Time: If an employee is required to attend an out-of-town event at the request of the 
department head, the employee's time spent traveling to and from the event will be counted as 
work time. Travel time is defined as time spent driving, or as a passenger, or time spent waiting 
to purchase a ticket, check baggage, or get on board. Time spent taking a break from travel in 
order to eat a meal, sleep, or engage in purely personal pursuits not connected with traveling or 
making necessary travel connections will not be counted as time worked. Any travel time in 
excess of the normal working hours will be paid overtime if the employee works more than 40 
hours in a workweek. 



Memora11dum of U11dersta11di11g- SEIU 
page 11 

Article 10.0 Sick Leave and Industrial Accident Benefits 

It is agreed that sick leave for each probationary and regular employee in the CITY service subject to 
these provisions, shall be authorized as follows: 

1. Sick Leave Accrual: Effective July 1, 2011, employees shall accrue sick leave with pay at the 
rate of 8.334 hours for each full month of service for a total of 100 hours for each full twelve (12) 
months of service. A maximum of 800 hours may be accumulated. 

2. Sick Leave Permitted: Employees may use accrued sick leave with pay for absences necessitated 
as follows: 

a. Illness, including contagious disease, or injury. 
b. Authorized absence for medical care and/or appointments. 
c. Death, illness, or injury of a member of the immediate family or domestic 

partner. To be eligible for the domestic partner benefit, the employee must 
register their domestic partner with the CITY. 

3. Sick Leave Payoff: 

a. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011: Employees with more than 800 accrued sick leave 
hours as of July 7, 2011, shall receive a cash payment on July 21, 2011 for accrued sick leave in 
excess of 800. After July 21, 2011, there will not be any cash payment for accrued sick leave in 
excess of 800 hours. Upon retirement from CITY service or separation in good standing after 
five (5) years of completed CITY service, regular employees shall receive cash payment for fifty 
(50%) percent of up to 800 accrued sick leave hours with a maximum cash payment for no more 
than 400 accrued sick leave hours. Upon the death of a regular employee after five (5) years of 
completed CITY service, his/her beneficiary shall receive cash payment for fifty (50%) percent of 
the accrued hours of sick leave to a maximum of 400 hours. 

b. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011: Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, will 
not be permitted to receive a cash payment for any accrued sick leave, and unused sick leave 
cannot be converted to CalPERS service credit. 

4. Sick Leave Payoff Procedure: Sick leave when paid off upon separation shall be compensated at 
the current or latest pay rate of the employee. 

5. Industrial Accident Leave: Employees on industrial accident leave shall receive up to 30 working 
days full pay in lieu of temporary disability payments. Should an industrial injury extend beyond 
30 working days, employees may, on a pro rata basis, augment temporary disability pay with 
accrued sick leave, vacation or compensating time off benefits. 

Article 11.0 Holiday and Vacation Benefits 

1. HOLIDAYS: It is agreed that holiday benefits for each probationary and regular employee in the 
CITY shall be authorized as follows: 

a. New Year's Day January 1 

b. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 3rd Monday in January 



Memorandum of Understanding- SE/U 
page 12 

c. Washington's Birthday 

d. Cesar Chavez Day 

e. Memorial Day 

f. Independence Day 

g. Labor Day 

h. Veteran's Day 

1. Thanksgiving 

J. Friday after Thanksgiving 

k. Christmas Eve 
(One-full day preceding Christmas 
except when Christmas falls 
on Sunday or Monday in which 
case the holiday will be on the 
Friday preceding) 

1. Christmas Day 

m. New Year's Eve 
(One-full day preceding New Year's 
Day except when New Year's Day 
falls on Sunday or Monday in which 
case the holiday will be on the 
Friday preceding) 

3rct Monday in February 

31st of March 

Last Monday in May 

July4 

1st Monday in September 

November 11 

4th Thursday in November 

4th Friday in November 

December 24 

December 25 

December 31 

2. Sunday Holiday: City Hall will be closed on holidays a. through m. above. When a holiday 
listed herein falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as a holiday on which 
City Hall will be closed. 

3. Saturday Holiday: When a holiday listed herein falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be 
observed as a Holiday. 

4. Floating Holidays: Employees shall receive two (2) floating holiday paid absences from work 
annually to be taken on a day mutually agreeable to the employee and the department head. When 
an employee is hired, floating holidays will be prorated for the year. Employees using floating 
holiday time before the holiday passes and subsequently leaving City service will be charged for 
such time. Employees who do not use their floating holiday time before June 30 of the fiscal year 
will lose such time. All floating holidays to be taken on days mutually agreeable to the employee 
and the Department head. 

5. Vacation Accrual: Vacation will accrue as outlined in Article VII Section 4 of the City of 
Imperial Beach Personnel Rules, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "C" and made a part of 
this M.O.U. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 13 

Article 12.0 Holiday Furlough Program 

1. Furlough Hours: The parties agree to a maximum 40 hour per fiscal year Holiday Work Furlough 
to be calculated by City prior to start of ensuing calendar year period (i.e. January 1). The Work 
Furlough will take effect during the otherwise normal workweek between the Hard Holidays of 
December 25 and January 1 only. 

In classifications where staffing of positions will be necessary (as determined by City Manager) 
during the subject workweek, the affected employees shall have added the number of furlough 
hours worked. 

In an effort to minimize the financial impact of the Work Furlough on employees, the employees' 
bi-weekly pay shall be reduced by an amount reflecting the designated Work Furlough. The 
adjustment will commence upon the first full pay period of the calendar year, effective January 1, 
2010. The work furlough will continue until reduced or discontinued by the parties and will have 
no impact on employee benefits to the extent permitted by law. 

2. Overtime during furlough period: Employees on furlough time who are subsequently called in to 
work will be paid callback in accordance with SEIU MOU Article 9.0, Section 5, Call-Back 
Overtime. Overtime will be paid in accordance with SEIU MOU Article 9.0, Section 4, 
Overtime, only for overtime worked outside the employees' normal work shift. 

3. Employees who, through no fault of their own, are not allowed to take their furlough hours within 
the fiscal year will have the remaining hours carried over for use during the next fiscal year. To 
be eligible for the carryover, employees must demonstrate that they have made every effort to use 
their allotted furlough hours. 

4. Furlough hours will be prorated for new hires, terminating employees and permanent part-time 
employees who have an established work schedule of 30 hours or less (3/4 time) and those 
temporary part-time employees that work a consistent bi-weekly work schedule on an annual 
basis who want to participate in the program. 

5. The City will make every effort to notify employees of furlough scheduling by August 151
• In 

cases where decisions relating to who within a classification will work during the furlough 
period, seniority should not be the sole determining factor. Consideration should be given to 
employee preferences, equity, etc. 

6. Employees scheduled to be off during the furlough period, who are called in to work due to 
operational necessity, will have the appropriate number of hours of furlough leave credited to 
their furlough leave bank. 

7. Employees scheduled to be off during the furlough period who, at that time, do not have adequate 
furlough leave hours, will be required to use vacation or floating holiday leave or compensatory 
time. Sick leave will not be approved to offset furlough leave hours during the furlough period. 
If there are not sufficient hours in the aforementioned categories, the time will be recorded as 
Leave Without Pay. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 14 

Article 13.0 Insurance Benefits 

1. Health Insurance Flexible Benefit Plan 
Effective July 1, 2011, the CITY shall increase by $30 from $795 to $825 per month ($9900 per 
plan year) the maximum the CITY pays toward the cost of health insurance coverage or the 
purchase of other qualified benefits. Effective July 1, 2012, the City shall increase by $30, from 
$825 to $855 per month ($10,260 per plan year), the maximum the City pays toward the cost of 
health insurance coverage or the purchase of other qualified benefits. 
All CITY health insurance carriers are provided through the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS). Each employee who elects health insurance shall have $16 (or 
the amount required by CalPERS) of the monthly amount paid by the City to PERS for that 
benefit, with the remaining balance available for other cafeteria selections. 

An EMPLOYEE who elects to be covered under the City's health insurance plan, must select 
single employee coverage under the City's dental care provider. This selection is required to be 
eligible to take advantage of the City's Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs) for Health Care and 
Dependent Care. This selection will ensure that no Third Party Administrator (TPA) 
administrative costs are associated with EMPLOYEE's participation as described under Section 3, 
Subpart C of this Article. 

For July 1, 2011 through December 31,2011, an employee hired prior to July 1, 2011, who elects 
not to be covered under the City's Health insurance plan may cash out as a taxable cash benefit a 
maximum of $795 per month. Effective January 1, 2012, an EMPLOYEE hired prior to July 1, 
2011, who elects not to be covered under the City's health insurance plan, may cash out as a 
taxable cash benefit a maximum of $400 per month. Those EMPLOYEES who elect not to be 
covered under the City's health insurance plan must demonstrate proof of alternative medical and 
dental insurance (i.e. spouse coverage). 

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, who elect not to be covered under the City's Health 
insurance plan, may cash out as a taxable cash benefit a maximum of $150 per month. Those 
EMPLOYEES who elect not to be covered under the City's Health insurance plan must 
demonstrate proof of alternative medical and dental insurance (i.e. spouse coverage). 

2. Health, Dental and Vision Pavroll Deductions Treated as Pre-Tax: All payroll deductions for 
health, dental care and vision are treated by the CITY on a pre-tax basis in order for the CITY to 
meet IRS regulations or if the IRS regulations change for any reason, this benefit may be 
discontinued. In the event that the total cost of benefits exceeds the allowance, the difference 
shall be deducted from the EMPLOYEE's salary as a salary reduction. If the allowance exceeds 
the total cost ofbenefits selected, the difference shall be to the EMPLOYEE as taxable income. 

3. Flexible Spending Accounts for Health Care and Dependent Care: Two Flexible Spending 
Accounts (FSA's), under Section 125, 105, 129 and 213 of the Internal Revenue Services Code, 
are offered to all represented employees. An EMPLOYEE may elect to budget by salary 
reduction, for certain health and welfare benefits and dependent care reimbursements on a pre-tax 
basis. If the CITY does not meet IRS regulations or if the IRS regulations change for any reason, 
this benefit may be discontinued. 



Memorandum of Understanding - SEIU 
page 15 

a. Health and Welfare FSA 

Before the start of the FSA plan year (January 1 to December 31), represented employees 
may reduce their salary up to maximum of $1,040 per plan year to pay for eligible health and 
welfare expenses. Salary reductions will accrue bi-weekly during the plan year and 
reimbursements will be made on a schedule to be determined by the City. This is a 
reimbursement program. Participating employees must submit documentation of payment on 
the appropriate forms to receive reimbursement. Salary reductions not spent by the end of the 
plan year, by law, are forfeited to the City. 

b. Dependent Care FSA 

Before the start of the FSA plan year (January 1 to December 31), represented employees 
may reduce their salary up to a maximum of $5,000 per plan year to pay for eligible 
dependent care. In no event can dependent care pre-tax dollars, whether reimbursed through 
FSA, the City Flexible Benefit Plan or a combination of both, exceed $5,000 per calendar 
year. Salary reduction will accrue bi-weekly during the plan year and reimbursements will 
be made on a schedule to be determined by the City. Dependent care must qualify under all 
pertinent IRS regulations. This is a reimbursement program. Participating employees must 
submit documentation of payment and other information related to dependent care 
arrangement to receive reimbursement. Salary reductions not spent by the end of the plan 
year, by law, are forfeited to the City. 

c. FSA Administration 

The City reserves the right to contract with the Third Party Administrator (TPA) for 
administration of both FSA's. The City will pay the start-up costs associated with the third 
party administration, if any required. Participating employees will pay monthly, per 
employee, or per transaction administration fees, if any required. 

4. State Disability Insurance and Individual Term Life Insurance: Each employee will be provided 
by City State Disability Insurance and Individual Term Life Insurance, such insurance will not be 
part of the Flexible Benefits Plan and must be paid by the EMPLOYEE as a normal payroll after
tax deduction. 

5. Enrollment and Election: Election under the City's Flexible Health Benefit Plan shall take effect 
on the first of the month following 30 days after approval of the request. Payment shall be 
divided equally between the first two paydays in each month. If the CITY significantly alters the 
payment schedule, this payment schedule will be subject to meet and confer. 

Once this election is made, the EMPLOYEE will not be allowed to change except as follows: 

a. At the next open enrollment 

b. Subsequent to proof or loss of coverage under the spouse's plan, re-enrollment 
may occur on the first of the month following 30 days after notice of this event is 
given to the City Personnel Department via an approved and completed 
enrollment form and a Health Statement Request, if required. 

c. The CITY shall not be liable for any medical costs resulting to the employee as 
part of this election. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SE/U 
page 16 

6. Seasonal Employees Benefit: The CITY shall make a good faith effort to seek a health insurance 
plan for seasonal employees to participate in at EMPLOYEE's expense. 

7. An Insurance Committee shall be established for the purpose of investigating and reviewing 
health related matters and all insurance options, including health, life, disability, etc. Matters 
subject to the duty to bargain may be discussed, however, the Insurance Committee shall not have 
the authority to add to, amend, or modify this Agreement. The City and SEIU may reopen 
negotiations during the term of this MOU to consider changes to matters investigated and 
reviewed by the Insurance Committee if agreed to by both parties. 

If any legally mandated changes to health insurance should occur during the term of this MOU, 
both parties agree to re-open negotiations to meet and confer over any related mandatory subjects 
of bargaining. 

Article 14.0 Uniforms 

1. The CITY shall assume full cost for the rental and cleaning of uniforms when required by the 
Department of Public Works. CITY shall issue to all designated employees five (5) work t-shirts 
per year per employee at no cost to employee. 

2. The CITY shall reimburse designated employees an amount not to exceed $150.00 per employee 
per year for safety shoes. 

3. The CITY shall issue all lifeguards the following personal wear: one (1) pair of trunks, two (2) 
shirts, one (1) sweatpants, one (1) hat and duck feet swim fins. Lifeguards shall be responsible 
for cleaning and maintenance of personal wear. The CITY shall make available for lifeguard use 
the following: sun screen, pocket mask (CPR), extra thick gloves (rubber), wet suits for winter 
guards, and jacket. Jackets will be replaced when necessary due to normal wear and tear. 
Expected life of a jacket is three seasons. If jacket is lost, stolen, or abused the lifeguard must 
purchase a new one. 

CITY shall reimburse all lifeguards one (1) pair safety sunglasses not to exceed $90.00 per year 
per employee subject to CITY administrative procedures. 

All lifeguards shall adhere to a standard of personal grooming and appearance. Such standards 
shall be developed in consultation with lifeguard personnel. 

4. The City shall assume full costs for the purchase of uniforms for the employees in the Fire 
Prevention Division. Fire inspectors shall be issued three (3) pairs of pants, (3) shirts and one (1) 
jacket, when necessary, due to normal wear and tear. Fire inspectors shall be responsible for 
cleaning and maintenance of the uniforms. If the uniform is lost, stolen or abused, the fire 
inspector shall purchase a new one. In the first payperiod after July 1 of each year, the City will 
provide a $250.00 stipend to Fire Inspectors for cleaning and maintenance of the City issued 
uniforms. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 17 

Article 15.0 Salaries 

1. All represented employees shall receive the following stipend amount during the term of this 
agreement, as follows: 

a. Miscellaneous Employees- Effective July 1, 2011, full-time employees will 
receive a 3% stipend for those employed prior to July 1, 2011. Effective July 1, 
2012, full-time employees will receive a 2.5% stipend for those employed prior 
to July 1, 2011. 

Part time employees will not receive any stipends during the term of this MOU. 
b. 

Lifeguards- Effective July 1, 2011, full-time lifeguards will receive a 5.5% 
stipend for those employed prior to July 1, 2011. Effective July 1, 2012, full-time 
lifeguards will receive a 9.5% stipend for those employed prior to July 1, 2011. 

Part time lifeguards will not receive any stipends during the term of this MOU. 

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011 will not receive any stipends during the term of this 
MOU. 

2. No cost ofliving salary adjustments or general salary increases shall be provided for the duration 
of the term of this MOU. 

Article 16.0 Retirement Benefits 

1. For employees hired prior to July 1, 2011: 

Miscellaneous Employees- Effective July 1, 2011, employees shall pay the entire employee 
portion of the CalPERS retirement contribution. 

Lifeguard Employees- Effective July 1, 2011, employees shall pay 4.5% of the employee portion 
of the CalPERS retirement contribution. Effective July 1, 2012, employees shall pay the entire 
employee portion of the CalPERS retirement contribution. 

2. The CITY will continue to provide the following CalPERS retirement benefit for employees hired 
prior to July 1, 2011: 

a. Miscellaneous Employees- The City shall provide CalPERS 2.7% at 55 retirement. 

b. Lifeguards- The CITY shall provide full-time lifeguards CalPERS 2% at 50 retirement. 

3. Full-time Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011: 

a. Miscellaneous- The CalPERS formula for employees hired on or after July 1, 2011 
through June 30, 2013 shall be 2% at 60 with the use of the average of the employee's highest-three-year
salary. Employees shall pay the entire portion of the CalPERS retirement contribution. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 18 

b. Lifeguards- The CalPERS formula for employees hired on or after July 1, 2011 through 
June 30, 2013 shall be 2% at 50 with the use of the average of the employee's highest-three-year-salary. 
Employees shall pay the entire employee portion of the CalPERS retirement contribution. 

c. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, will not be allowed to convert unused sick 
leave to CalPERS service credit. 

4. Part-time employees: All part time employees will be moved to PARS and will no longer pay 
into Social Security. Once implemented through December 31, 2011, employees will contribute 2.10% 
into PARS and the City will contribute 5.40%. Beginning January 1, 2012, employees and the City will 
split the contribution equally at 3.75% each. 

Article 17.0 State Disability Insurance 

The CITY shall make available State Disability Insurance coverage to those employees who elect to 
participate, provided that all research and preparation necessary for implementation shall be accomplished 
by the UNION. Payment for said plan shall be made by the individual employee at no cost to the City. 

Article 18.0 Re-negotiation 

In the event either party desires to meet and confer on the provisions of a successor M.O.U., it shall serve 
upon the other its written request to commence meeting and conferring. Each party may then submit its 
full and entire written proposal on a successor Memorandum of Understanding. 

Article 19.0 Implementation 

This M.O.U. constitutes a mutual recommendation to be jointly submitted to the Imperial Beach City 
Council. It is agreed that this M.O.U. shall not be binding either in whole or in part unless and until the 
City Council acts by majority vote formally to approve and adopt said M.O.U. 

Article 20.0 Emergency 

Nothing contained herein shall limit the authority of Management to make necessary changes during 
emergencies. However, Management shall notify the Association of such changes as soon as possible. 
Such emergency assignments shall not extend beyond the period of the emergency. Emergency is defined 
as an unforeseen circumstance requiring immediate implementation of the change. 

Article 21.0 Savings Clause 

If any provisions of this M.O.U. or the enabling resolution is at any time, or in any way, held to be 
contrary to any law by any court or proper jurisdiction, the remainder of this M.O.U. and the remainder of 
the enabling resolution shall not be affected thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 19 

Article 22.0 Agreement Review 

Recognizing the joint concern over the City of Imperial Beach's ability to fund the recommendations 
contained within the agreement, it is mutually understood that should the California State Legislature 
mandate a salary or fringe benefit item applicable to employees represented by the association, City may 
at its option require that this M.O.U. be reviewed. It is further understood that should the California State 
legislature mandate a reduction in a salary or fringe benefit item applicable to the employees represented 
by the UNION, the UNION may at its option require that this M.O.U. be reviewed. 

It is understood that the UNION and the CITY may discuss and consult with each other with respect to 
non-economic items during the period of this agreement, except as noted above, in order to further 
communicate between the CITY and UNION in an effort to promote the improvement of personnel 
management and employer-employee relations. 

Article 23.0 Safety Program 

A City-wide Safety Program shall be developed and implemented in accordance with federal and state 
mandated requirements. A Safety Officer shall be appointed among management personnel to develop 
implement and maintain a City-wide safety awareness program. 

Article 24.0 Smoking 

No smoking is allowed in City buildings when employees are present. 

Article 25.0 Educational Benefits 

1. The CITY shall maintain a program providing for the partial refund of tuition and fees for all job 
related classes or training. The CITY agrees to pay up to $1,000 per employee per fiscal year for 
fees, books, and/or tuition for such classes. Classes would require prior approval of the 
department head and subject to established criteria for reimbursement approval through 
administrative policy by City Manager, effective July 1, 2001. The educational benefit is 
designed to reimburse representative employees for fees, books, tuition, software, and valid 
parking fees (associated with the course only) upon conclusion of each individual course. 

2. The CITY shall conduct at least three (3) lifeguard training events per summer session. 
Employees shall be paid to attend mandatory lifeguard training sessions. 

3. The CITY shall reimburse lifeguards whom, while at the service to the CITY, successfully 
complete training and receive a certificate as an Emergency Medical Technician. Such 
reimbursement shall not exceed $400 and shall be limited to costs incurred for tuition, fees, 
books, and lab fees. If any lifeguard who has been the recipient of the above reimbursement 
should leave the lifeguard service before completing three (3) seasons after being reimbursed, 
he/she shall refund the full reimbursement to the CITY. 

Expenses for EMT certificates of renewal shall be reimbursed to Lifeguard Sergeant, Lifeguard II 
and Lifeguard I classifications. Reimbursement is limited to actual cost of classes, fees and . 
books. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page20 

4. CITY agrees to the continuation of an Employee Personal Computer Purchase Program available 
to all CITY employees during the term of this agreement subject to budgetary constraints and 
City Council approval. 

Article 26.0 Employee Assistance Program 

City continues to implement and fund an Employee Assistance Program for all City employees. 

Article 27.0 Service Fee 

I. Implementation 

City of Imperial Beach shall cause the City Auditor to deduct a bi-weekly "Service fee" from the pay 
warrants of those employees in SEIU Local 221 - represented Bargaining Units who fail to become 
UNION members within thirty days of employment with the CITY or who terminate UNION 
membership during City employment. Such fee shall be the equivalent to a Fair Share Fee (proportionate 
share of the Union's cost of legally authorized representational services) as determined yearly by a CPA. 
Remittance of the aggregate amount of all dues, fees and other proper deductions made from salaries of 
employees covered hereunder shall be made to the UNION by the CITY. 

A. UNION agrees to keep an adequate itemized record of its financial transactions and shall make 
available annually to the CITY, within sixty days after the end of its fiscal year, a written 
financial statement in the form of a balance sheet and an operating statement certified as to 
accuracy by the SEIU Local221221 President and a Certified Public Accountant. 

B. Union further agrees to hold such disputed fees in their entirety in an escrow account to be 
maintained at the San Diego County Credit Union, 555 Mildred Street, San Diego, California 
pending resolution of the dispute pursuant to the Service Fee Complaint Procedure. 

C. Hold Harmless: The UNION hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the CITY harmless from any 
and all liability arising out of such Service Fees pursuant to this Agreement. 

II. Service Fee Complaint Procedure 

A. This Complaint Procedure shall be utilized solely to resolve disputes arising out of the deduction 
of Service fee by the CITY pursuant to a negotiated agreement. 

1. Issues subject to this complaint shall be limited to the following: 

a. That a portion of the Service Fee deduction is being utilized for non
representation activities. 

b. That the non-member is a member of a bona-fide religion, body or sect which has 
historically held a conscientious objections to joining or financially supporting 
public employee organizations. 

In the event that it is determined pursuant to this procedure that such non-member is a member of 
a religion or body pursuant to this Section, he or she may designate a charitable fund exempt from 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 21 

taxation under Section 501, Paragraph C, Subsection 3 of the Internal Revenue Code chosen from 
the following: 

Muscular Dystrophy 
United Way 
American Cancer Society 
American Red Cross 

City agrees to Cause Auditor to deduct and to remit fees so designated in behalf of one of the 
above charitable organizations to said organization. 

B. Any non-member employee who objects to the deduction of the Service Fee by the CITY shall 
file a complaint with the Union. The complaint shall be in writing and shall specify the reason(s) 
for the objection to the deduction. The complaint need not be formal, but shall clearly state the 
basis for the objection. 

1. Any employee who objects to the deduction of the Service Fee shall forward his or her 
written complaint to the UNION within forty-five (45) calendar days after the fee is 
initially deducted. 

2. Upon receipt of the written complaint, UNION shall place the entire Service Fee 
Deduction into escrow pending resolution of the dispute, and shall request a list of 
arbitrators from the State conciliation Service or the American Arbitration Union. 

C. Informal Mediation: Notwithstanding Step B, Subsection 2, above, either the UNION or the 
complainant may request the services of a State Conciliation mediator in a preliminary effort to 
resolve the dispute prior to arbitration. Following such non-binding informal advisory mediation, 
if either complainant or UNION is dissatisfied, either party may request arbitration. 

D. Selection of Arbitrator: The arbitrator shall be selected by mutual agreement between the SEIU 
Local221221 and the grievant or his/her representative. If the UNION and the grievant or his her 
representative are unable to agree on the selection of an arbitrator, they shall jointly request the 
Sate Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of (5) qualified arbitrators. The UNION 
and the grievant or his/her representative shall then alternately strike names from the list until 
only one name remains, and that person shall serve as arbitrator. 

1. Date for Complaint Hearing - - The UNION shall contact the selected Arbitrator within 
ten (10) calendar days from the date of the completion of the Mediation process, or in the 
event that Mediation is not utilized, within (10) working days of receipt of the complaint. 
Upon confirmation by the Arbitrator, the UNION will forthwith contact the complainant 
by certified mail indicating the date, time and place of the complaint hearing. 

E. Pavments of Costs: In the event that the UNION prevails in said arbitration, the cost of 
arbitration shall be shared equally between the UNION and complainant. Should complainant 
prevail, UNION shall pay the entire cost of the arbitration. 

F. Effect of Arbitrator's Decision: The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding. Upon 
receipt of arbitrator's decision, fees being held in escrow shall be disbursed by the UNION in 
accordance with said decision. In the event that the UNION prevails, the CITY shall continue to 
deduct the service fees and to remit then to the UNION as determined by the arbitration. 



Memorandum of Understanding - SEIU 
page 22 

Article 28.0 Labor Management Committee 

The CITY and the UNION agree to establish a Labor Management Committee. The purpose of the 
Committee is to discuss issues relating to this agreement, and other issues of quality of work life. The 
Committee shall have no authority to change, modify, alter, or amend this agreement. It is the intent of 
the parties to foster a cooperative atmosphere and harmonious working relations. 

The Committee shall be composed of the President of the UNION or his/her designee and two (2) other 
Employee representatives and one (1) staff representative from the UNION. In addition, the CITY shall 
appoint the Human Resources Manager or his /her designee and two (2) other management employees. 

Meetings shall be held quarterly and additionally when mutually agreed upon and at times that are 
mutually acceptable to both parties. The party desiring to meet shall request the meeting at least fifteen 
(15) days prior and shall submit an agenda of items to be discussed. Release time will be provided to 
UNION representatives for the purpose of serving on the Committee. 

It is the intention of the UNION to meet with CITY in the context of Labor Management Committee as 
soon as possible after the adoption of a new M.O.U., to discuss workload and staffing issues throughout 
the City. 

Article 29.0 Term 

The term of this Memorandum shall be for a two (2) year period commencing July 1, 2011, and ending 
June 30, 2013. All provisions of this MOU shall apply retroactively to July 1, 2011, except where 
specifically stated herein. 

Article 30.0 Catastrophic Leave 

The CITY agrees to implement a Catastrophic Leave policy to allow vacation, floating holiday, or 
compensatory time credits to be transferred from one employee to another on an hour-for-hour basis for 
authorized catastrophic leave. A maximum of 40 hours of leave per employee may be transferred with 
the receiving employee credits not exceeding more than 520 ho.urs over any 24 month period without City 
Manager approval. 

Article 31.0 Actuarial 

CITY agrees to provide to the UNION the actuarial from CalPERS requested via letter dated April 28, 
2011, for the 3%@ 50 enhanced retirement benefit for Lifeguards. 

Article 32.0 Payroll Policies 

The CITY will strive to notify employees in advance of any change in deductions from their paychecks 
and make any corrections within the next pay period. 

The CITY will implement a policy regarding final paycheck deductions and notify employees of these 
procedures. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 23 

Article 33.0 Other Miscellaneous Provisions 

The City will add to Article IV Section 6.0 (Appointments) of the Personnel Rules as follows: 

Permanent Part-time: Permanent Part-time employees must work at least 30 hours per week on a 
continuous basis in order to be eligible for prorated benefits. 

The City will modify the first paragraph of Article VI Section Section 5.0 (Salary Adjustments) of the 
Personnel Rules to read: 

Every employee who holds a permanent appointment to a full-time position, upon a written 
recommendation of the department head and approval of the City Manager, and who receives a competent 
or better evaluation, shall advance to the next step within the salary range for the class. The advancement 
will become effective on the first day of the succeeding pay period after completing 2,080 hours at the 
previous step with the exception of Step A. An employee in a temporary part-time position would be 
eligible for a step increase effective on the first day of the succeeding pay period after their hire date 
anniversary if they have complete 780 hours in the previous 12 months (for part-time temporary 
Lifeguards the anniversary date will be September 1 of each year). Part-time temporary employees will 
automatically be eligible for a step increase on their anniversary date every 24 months, if they have not 
otherwise been eligible due to the annual 780-hour requirement. 

The City will clarify Article VII Section 4.0 (Vacation Leave) of the Personnel Rules to read: 

(b) Vacation Accrual: Vacation will be accrued and credited on a monthly basis when an 
employee is in pay status for fifty percent (50%) or more of the work days in a given 
month. Each eligible employee shall accrue vacation at the following rate for continuous 
service performed in a pay status unless a Memorandum of Understanding applicable to 
them provides otherwise: 

(1) For employees completing five (5) years or less of continuous service (i.e. First day 
through 5th anniversary), one (1) working day for each month of service completed, 
for a maximum of twelve (12) days per year. 

(2) For employees with greater than five (5) years of continuous service up to the 
completion often (10) years of continuing service (i.e. 5 years+ 1 day through lOth 
anniversary), one and one-fourth (1 ~)working days for each month of service 
completed, for a maximum of 15 days per year. 

(3) For employees with greater than ten (10) years of continuous service up to the 
completion of fifteen (15) years of continuing service (i.e. 10 years + 1 day through 
15th anniversary), one and one and two-thirds (1 2/3) working days for each month 
of service completed, for a maximum of 20 days per year. 

( 4) For employees with greater than fifteen years of continuous service or more (i.e. 15 
years+ 1 day and above), two and one-twelve (2.0833) working days for each month 
of service completed, for a maximum of 25 days per year. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page24 

The City will update Article VII Section 3.0 (Holidays With Pay) of the Personnel Rules to read: 

Section 3 - Holidays With Pay: An eligible employee shall be entitled to the holidays set forth in the 
current Memorandum of Understanding. 

Employees may request time off to attend religious services or other religious activities on recognized 
religious holidays during the year. Such time off shall be charged to the employee's accumulated vacation 
leave, holiday bank, or compensatory time off. If the employee has no accumulated vacation leave, 
holiday bank, or compensatory time off, such time off shall be without pay. 

The method for compensating employees who are required to work on a holiday or whose normal day off 
falls on a holiday shall be given holiday bank hours to use at a time convenient to the department head 
and the employee. An employee may accrue a maximum of 80 hours of holiday bank time. Any holiday 
bank hours beyond 80 hours shall be paid in the pay period incurred. 

When an employee is absent on vacation leave, holiday bank leave, sick leave or compensatory time off, a 
holiday immediately preceding, following, or wholly within such leave period shall be recorded as a 
holiday and not as a day of leave. 

If a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as a holiday. If the holiday falls on 
Sunday, the following Monday will be observed as a holiday. 

Classification Recognition: The positions of Building Official and Management Analyst will be 
considered part of mid-management (a non-represented group) and not be represented by UNION as part 
of the City oflmperial Beach miscellaneous employee group. 

Article 34.0 Strikes and other Concerted Activities 

During the term of this MOU, it is agreed that there will be no strikes, including sympathy strikes, 
slowdowns, concerted stoppage of work, or sickouts. 



Memorandum of Understanding- SEIU 
page 25 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this M.O.U. on the _th day of September 
2011. 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

Gary R. Brown 
City Manager 

l2zn~ 
TomClark ~ 
Public Safety Director/Fire Chief 

~~ 
Linda Leichtle 

SERVICE EMPLOYEES 
INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 221 

Executive Director 
SEIU, Local 221 

or 
W o site Organizer 
SEIU, Local221 

ac Cellano 
IU Employee Representative 

ArtAyal 
SEIU Employee Representative 



Exhibit "A" 

ARTICLE X- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Section 1 - Purpose of Grievance Procedure 

The purpose and objective of this grievance procedure is to provide a just and equitable 
method for the resolving of grievances as quickly as possible without discrimination, 
coercion, restraint, or reprisal against any employee or management representative who 
may be involved in a grievance or its resolution: 

Section 2- Definitions 

For the purpose ofthis grievance procedure, the following defmitions apply: 

(a) Employee Representative: An individual who appears on behalf of the 
employee. 

(b) Grievance: A written complaint of an employee or a group of employees 
claiming violation of the application or interpretation of the specific 
express terms of the Personnel Rules or other written rules or regulations 
for which no other specific method of review is provided in City rules. 

(c) Grievant: An employee or group of employees in the competitive service 
adversely affected by an act or omission of the City. 

Section 3- Grievance Procedure Exclusions 

A grievance is not reviewable under this procedure if it requires modification of a policy 
established by law or is a matter which is reviewable under some other administrative 
procedure or Personnel Rule. The following are not grievable: 

(a) Applications for changes in title, job classiftcation, or salary. 

(b) Appeals from formal disciplinary proceedings. 

(c) Appeals arising out of merit system examinations or appointment. 

(d) Appeals from work performance evaluations. 

(e) Complaints arising from the City's health insurance plan. 

Section 4- Specifics of the Grievance: 

l. Procedure for Presentation: 

ln presenting a grievance, the employee shall set forth the following information: 



(a) The specific section of the rules allegedly violated. 

(b) The specific act or omission which gave rise to the alleged violation. 

(a) The date or dates on which the violation occurred. 

(b) The documents, witnesses, or other evidence that supports your position. 

(c) The remedy requested. 

2. Prescribed Form: 

The written grievance shall be submitted on a form provided by the City. 

3. Employee Representative 

The employee may choose a representative at any step in the procedure. No person 
hearing a grievance need recognize more than two representatives for any employee at 
any one time, unless desired. 

4. Handled During Working Hours: 

Whenever possible, grievances will be handled during the regularly scheduled working 
hours of the parties involved. A grievance shall be presented and processed on City time. 
This requirement may be waived by mutual agreement. In scheduling the time, place, 
and duration of any grievance meeting, the employee, the employee's representative, and 
management shall give due consideration of all the patiicipants' responsibilities in the 
essential operations of the department. 

5. Extension or Waiver of Time: 

Any higher level of review or any time limits established in this procedure may be 
waived or extended by mutual agreement confirmed in writing. 

6. Consolidation of Grievances: 

If the grievance involves a group of employees or if a number of employees ftle separate 
grievances on the same matter, the grievances may be handled as a single grievance. 

Section 5- Grievance Procedure Steps 

The following procedure shall be followed by an employee submitting a grievance: 

(a) Grievance to Supervisor: Whenever an employee believes a grievance 
exists, the employee must discuss the matter informally with the 
supervisor within twenty (20) working days of the incident on which the 
grievance is based, occurred, or within twenty (20) working days of the 
date the employee knows or is shown to have known of the incident. If 
after this discussion, the grieving party does not believe the problem has 
been satisfactorily resolved, within ten ( 1 0) working days of the initial 
meeting, a written grievance may be filed. 



(b) Grievance to Department Head: If the employee and the supervisor cannot 
reach an agreement as to the grievance or the employee has not received a 
written decision within five (5) working days, the employee may, within 
five (5) working days, present the grievance in writing to the 
department head. The department head shall review the grievance and give 
a written decision to the employee within five (5) working days after 
receiving the grievance. 

(c) Grievance to City Manager: If the employee and the department head 
cannot reach an agreement as to the grievance or the employee has not 
received a decision within ten (1 0) working days, the employee may, 
within ten (1 0) working days, present his grievance in writing to the City 
Ma·nager. The City Manager shall review the grievance and give a written 
decision to the employee within ten (1 0) working days after receiving the 
grievance. 

(d) Appeal to Personnel Board: If the employee and the City Manager cannot 
reach an agreement as to the grievance or the employee has not received a 
decision within ten (1 0) working days, the employee may, within ten (J 0) 
working days, appeal to the Personnel Board. The rules for the hearing are 
set forth in Article IX, Section 7, except that the grievant shall have the 
burden of proof and the order of presentation shall be the reverse, that is 
the grievant shall present a case first, followed by the City. 



Exhibit "B" 

ARTICLE IX -DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE 

Section 1 Kinds of Disciplinary Actions 

The desirable first step in modifying or changing undesirable employee work 
performance, action or behavior whenever possible, is to counsel orally an employee on 
the areas that need to be improved, changed, or stopped and to provide clear guidance 
on what the work-related expectations are. However, when this is not successful in 
changing the undesirable performance, act, or behavior, or the undesirable 
performance, act. or behavior is of such a nature that it warrants a higher level of 
intervention action, a permanent employee of the City in the Competitive Service may 
be disciplined or removed from employment for cause by the appointing authority. 

Kinds of disciplinary action may include the following: 

(a) Discharge or dismissal; 

(b) Demotion; 

(c) Suspension without pay; 

(d) Reduction in pay, either one or more steps within the salary range 
permanently or for a fixed period of time; 

(e) Written reprimand; 

Section 2 Cause for Disciplinary Action 

Any of the following shall be deemed sufficient cause for disciplinary action against any 
employee with permanent status in the Competitive Service. Charges may be based on 
causes other than those enumerated, if the action is deemed, by the City Manager or 
designee, to have a potential detrimental affect to work-related conditions, work-related 
environment, work-related performance, and/or to the City and its citizens: 

(a) Violations of these rules; 

(b) Inefficiency, incompetence, or negligence in the performance of duties, 
including failure to perform assigned tasks or training or failure to discharge 
duties in a prompt, competent. and responsible manner; 



(c) Willful disobedience or insubordination; or violation of any lawful or official 
regulation or order; or failure to obey any lawful and reasonable direction 
given by a superior officer; 

(d) Refusal, neglect, or failure to perform; 

(e) Excessive use or misuse of sick leave; 

(f) Any form of dishonesty, including but not limited to lying, fraud, cheating, 
deceit, or trickery; 

(g) Intoxication while on duty; 

(h) Fighting or disorderly conduct; 

(i) Discourteous or offensive treatment to the public or other employees; 

U) Absence without leave, or failure to report after leave of absence has expired 
or after such leave of absence has been disapproved or revoked by the 
appointing authority; 

(k) Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor which is job-related. Conviction 
includes a plea of guilty or no contest; 

(I) Abuse, gross negligence, or willful misconduct in the care or operation of City 
tools or equipment; causing damage to public property or waste of public 
supplies; 

(m) Soliciting or accepting for personal use a fee, gift, or other item of value in the 
course of or in connection with work when such fee, gift, or other item of value 
so solicited or given by any person in the hope or expectation of receiving an 
advantage, a favor, or better treatment than that accorded other persons; 

(n) Failure to obey an order from the department head or the City Manager to 
terminate or desist from outside employment or enterprise that has been 
determined to be incompatible with City employment or detrimental to the 
efficiency of regular City work; 



(o) Fraud in securing initial employment or subsequent appointment to higher 
position in City service; 

(p) Violation of safety procedures; 

(q) Immoral conduct while on duty or other failure of good behavior either during 
or outside of duty hours which does or could discredit the City; 

(r) Refusal to take or subscribe to any oath or affirmation which is required by 
law in connection with employment; 

(s) The use, sale, or possession of illegal narcotics, not prescribed by a physician 
while on duty; 

(t) Working overtime without authorization. 

Section 3 Written Reprimand 

Written Reprimand of substandard performance or misconduct may be given to an 
employee at any time an employee's performance or actions warrants it. The 
employee may submit a written response to the reprimand within ten (1 0) days of its 
receipt. A written reprimand and response, if any, will be placed in the employee's 
Personnel file. The employee has no right to appeal a reprimand. 

Section 4 Notice of Intent 

Whenever the department head intends to suspend an employee, demote an 
employee, reduce an employee in pay, or discharge the employee, the department 
head shall give the employee a written notice of discipline which sets forth the 
following: 

(a) The intended disciplinary action; 

(b) The specific charges upon which the action is based; 

(c) A factual summary of the grounds upon which the charges are based; 

(d) A copy of all written materials, reports, or documents upon which the 
discipline is based; 

(e) Notice of the employee' s right to respond to the charges, either orally or in 
writing, to the City Manager or other impartial designee; 



(f) The date, time and person before whom the employee may respond in no 
more than ten (1 0) business days; 

(g) Notice that failure to respond by the specified time shall constitute a waiver 
of the right to respond prior to final discipline being imposed. 

Section 5 Response by Employee 

The employee shall have the right to respond to the City Manager, or impartial 
designee, orally or in writing. The employee shall have a right to be represented at any 
meeting set to hear the employee's response. In cases of suspensions, demotions, 
reductions in pay, or discharge, the employee's response will be considered before final 
action is taken. 

Section 6 Final Notice 

After the response or the expiration of the employee's time to respond to the notice of 
intent, the City Manager, or impartial designee, shall: (1) dismiss the notice of intent and 
take no disciplinary action against the employee; or (2) modify the intended disciplinary 
action; or (3) prepare and serve upon the employee a final notice of disciplinary action. 
The final notice of disciplinary action shall include the following: 

(a) The disciplinary action taken; 

(b) The effective date of the disciplinary action taken; 

(c) Specific charges upon which the action based; 

(d) A factual summary of the based; upon which the charges disciplinary 
documents upon wh~ch written materials, reports, based; action the Personnel 
appeal employee's nght 

Section 7 Appeal Hearing 

The appeal procedure shall apply only to cases of disciplinary suspensions, reductions 
in pay, demotion, and dischar~Jes affecting permanent employees within the competitive 
serv1ce. 

1. Request for Hearing 

Within seven (7) working days after final notice of suspension, reduction in pay, 
demotion, or dismissal, the employee or the employee's representative may file an 
appeal in writing to the City Manager. If, within the seven (7) working day appeal 
period, the employee does not file said appeal, unless goof cause for the failure is 



shown, the action of the City shall be considered conclusive and shall take effect as 
prescribed. The appeal shall include the following: 

(a) An admission or denial of each charge, with an explanation why the charge 
admitted or denied. 

(b) A statement that the employee disagrees with the penalty, with an 
explanation of the employee's position. 

(c) The employee's current address. 

(d) A request for a hearing. 

Failure to provide this information rnay result in the appeal not being processed. 

2. Scheduling of Hearing 

Upon receipt of the request for an appeal, the City Manager shall schedule a hearing 
before the Personnel Board. The appeal hearing shall be set not less than twenty (20) 
working days nor more than sixty (60) working days from the date of the filing of the 
appeal. All interested parties shall be notified in writing of the date, time, and place of 
the hearing at least ten (1 0) working days prior to the hearing. 

3. Private or Public Hearings 

All hearings shall be private provided that the employee may request a hearing open 
to the public. Any request for an open hearing shall be submitted five (5) working days 
prior to the hearing date, or the hearing will be closed. 

4. Pre-Hearing Procedure 

a. Subpoenas 

The Personnel Board is authorized to issue subpoenas at the request of 
either party prior to the commencement of the hearing. After the 
commencement of the hearing, subpoenas shall be issued by the Board 
only for good cause. The Personnel Department will prepare subpoenas 
for all witnesses; however, they will only serve subpoenas for current city 
employees. It will be the responsibility of the employee or the City to 
serve subpoenas on individuals who are not currently employed by the 
City. It will be the responsibility of the employee and the city to submit the 
names of current city employees to be subpoenaed at least ten (1 0) 
working days before the date of the hearing in which they are requesting 
the witnesses to appear. 



b. Exhibits and Witness Lists 

Five (5) workin~J days prior to the date set for the hearing, each party 
shall serve upon the other party and submit to the Personnel Department 
a list of all witnE~sses and a list and copy of all exhibits. An original and 
nine (9) copies of the exhibits shall be presented to the Personnel Board 
in 3-hole notebooks which are tabbed down the side with the exhibit 
numbers. The employer's exhibits shall be designated by number. The 
employee's exhibits shall be designated by letters. Neither party will be 
permitted to call during the hearing a witness not identified pursuant to 
this section nor to use any exhibit not provided pursuant to this section 
unless that pa1iy can show the prior need for such witness or such 
exhibit could not reasonably have been anticipated. 

5. Submission to the Persqnnel Board 

Five (5) working days prior to the date of the hearing, the Personnel Department shall 
present each member of the Personnel Board with a copy of the jurisdictional 
documents. Those documents include the notice of intent to take disciplinary action, 
the final notice of disciplinary action, and any response from the employee to these 
documents. The Board shall be provided with copies of the exhibits at the hearing. 

6. Record of Proceedings and Costs 

a. Court Reporter 

All disciplinary appeal hearings may, at the discretion of the Board, be 
recorded by a court reporter. Any hearing which does not utilize a court 
reporter, shall be recorded by audiotapes. If a court reporter is requested 
by either party, that party shall pay the cost of the court reporter. If both 
parties request a court report, the cost will be split equally. If the Board 
requests the court reporter, the City shall pay the cost of the reporter. 

b. Employee Witn_ess Compensation 

Employees of the City who are subpoenaed to testify during working 
hours will be released and compensated while appearing at the hearing. 
The Board may direct that these employees remain on call until called to 
testify. Employees who are subpoenaed to testify during non-working 
hours will be compensated for the time they are required to be on call, if 
required, and actually testify, unless the City agrees to a different 
arrangement. 



7. Conduct of the Hearing 

a. The hearing need not be conducted in accordance with technical rules relating to 
evidence and witnesses, but hearings shall be conducted in a manner most 
conducive to determining the truth. 

b. Any relevant evidence may be admitted if it is the type of evidence on which 
reasonable persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs, 
regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory rules which might 
make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in civil actions. 

c. The rules dealing with privileges shall be effective to the same extent that they 
are now or hereafter may be recognized in civil actions. 

d. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence may be excluded. 

e. The Personnel Board shall determine the relevancy, weight, and credibility of 
testimony and evidence. Decisions made by the Board shall not be invalidated by 
any informality in the proceedings. 

f. During examination of a witness, all other witnesses, except the parties, shall be 
excluded from the hearing upon motion of either party. 

8. Burden of Proof 

In a disciplinary appeal, the employer has the burden of proof by preponderance of the 

evidence. 

9. Proceed with Hearing or Request for Continuance 

Each side should be asked if it is ready to proceed. If either side is not ready and 
wishes a continuance, good caus.::; must be stated. The Board will determine whether 
good cause exists and will grant or deny the request accordingly. 

10 Testimony under Oath 

All witnesses shall be sworn in for the record prior to offering testimony at the hearing. 
The chairperson will ask witnesses to raise their right hands and respond to the 
following: 

"Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give at this hearing i . the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?" 



I 1. Presentation of the CasE~ 

The hearing shall proceed in the following order, unless the Personnel Board directs 

otherwise: 

a. The City shall be permitted to make an opening statement 

b. The employee or representative shall be permitted to make an opening 
statement, or reserve an opening statement, until presentation of the case. 

c. The City shall produce its evidence. 

d. The employee may then offer evidence. 

e. The City followed by the appealing party (employee) may offer rebutting 
evidence. 

f. Closing arguments shall be permitted. The party with the burden of proof shall 
have the right to close the hearing by making the last argument. The Board may 
place a time limit on closing arguments. The Board or the parties may request the 
submission of written briefs. After such a request for submittal of written briefs, the 
Board will determine whether to allow the parties to submit written briefs and 
determine the number of pages of said briefs. 

12. Procedure for the Parties 

The department and the employee will address their remarks, including objections, to 
the Chair of the Board. Objections may be ruled upon summarily, or argument may be 
permitted. The Chair reserves the right to terminate argument at any time and issue a 
ruling regarding an objection or any other matter, and thereafter the parties shall 
continue with the presentation of their cases. 

13. Right to Control Proceedings 

While the parties are generally free to present their cases in the order that they prefer, 
the Chair reserves the right to control the proceedings, including but not limited to 
altering the order of witnesses, limiting redundant or irrelevant testimony, or directly 
questioning witnesses. 



14. Hearing Demeanor and Behavior 

All parties and their attorneys or representatives shall not, by written submission or oral 
presentation, disparage the intelligence, ethics, morals, integrity, or personal behavior of 
their adversaries or members of the Board. 

15. Deliberation Upon the Case 

The Board may choose to either deliberate the case in public or adjourn to closed 
session to deliberate. The Board will consider all oral and documentary evidence, the 
credibility of witnesses, and other appropriate factors in reaching its decision. The Board 
may deliberate at the close of the hearing or at a later, fixed date and time. 

16. Written Findings and Decision 

The Personnel Board shall render its findings and decision as soon after the conclusion 
of the hearing as possible, but not later than ten (1 0) working days after concluding the 
hearing, unless otherwise stipulated to by the parties. A finding must be made by the 
Board on each material issue. 

The Personnel Board may sustain or reject any or all of the charges filed against the 
employee. The Board may sustain, reject, or modify the disciplinary action invoked 
against the employee. If the Board reinstates the terminated employee, the employee is 
only entitled to back pay minus the sum the employee has earned during the period of 
absence. If a discharge is not ~;ustained, the proposed decision shall set forth a 
recommended effective date the employee is to be reinstated. 

The City Council sits as the Personnel Board. 

17. Judicial Review 

Judicial review of any final decision by the City Council may be had under Section 
1.18.010 of the Imperial Beach Municipal Code. 

Section 8- Failure of Employee to Appear at Hearing 
Failure of the employee to appear at the hearing, without just cause, shall be deemed a 
withdrawal of the appeal and the action of the City Manager shall be final. 

Section 9- Releasing of Information 

No information will be released relative to disciplinary action against municipal 
employees without prior approval of the City Manager. 



Exhibit "C" 

City of Imperial Beach - Personnel Rules 
(New version to be updated in Personnel Rules per MOU) 

Article VII - Leaves of Absence 
Section 4- Vacation Leave 

The purpose of annual vacation leave is to enable each eligible employee to return to 
work mentally refreshed 

(a) Waiting Pe1iod: All employees in the Competitive Service shall be 
entitled to use annual vacation leave with pay following the successful 
completion of his/her probationary period. However, an employee who is 
still in their probationary status may, after at least six months of service 
and with at least a satisfactory job performance rating, request vacation 
leave or compensatory leave if the employee has accrued compensatory 
leave, with the approval of the department head or designee. Additionally, 
a new employee who has not successfully completed his/her probationary 
period will be allowed to take, with the approval of the department head or 
designee, any Floating Holiday time off that they have accrued during 
their probationary period. 

(b) Vacation Accrual: Vacation will be accrued and credited on a monthly 
basis when an employee is in pay status for fifty percent (50%) or more of 
the work days in a given month. Each eligible employee shall accrue 
vacation at the following rate for continuous service performed in a pay 
status unless a Memorandum of Understanding applicable to them 
provides otherwise: 

(1) For employees completing five (5) years or less of continuous service 
(i.e. First day through 5th anniversary), one (1) working day for each 
month of service completed, for a maximum of twelve (12) days per 
year. 

(2) For employees with greater than five (5) years of continuous service 
up to the completion of ten (1 0) years of continuing service (i.e. 5 
years + 1 day through lOth anniversary), one and one-fourth (1 1,4) 
working days for each month of service completed, for a maximum of 
15 days per year. 

(3) For employees with greater than ten (1 0) years of continuous service 
up to the completion of fifteen (15) years of continuing service (i.e. 10 
years + 1 day through 15th anniversary), one and one and two-thirds (1 
2/3) working days for each month of service completed, for a 
maximum of 20 days per year. 



(4) For employees w1th greater than fifteen years of continuous service or 
more (i.e. 15 years+ 1 day and above), two and one-twelve (2.0833) 
working days for each month of service completed, for a maximum of 
25 days per year. 

(c) When to be Taken. Vacation schedules shall be set by the department head 
or designee with regard to the needs of the service and, as far as possible, 
with the wishes of the employee. Vacation shall not be deemed authorized 
until the employee's eligibility is verified by the City Manager or 
designee. If the employee cannot take part or all of his/her annual 
vacation in a calendar year, vacation shall be taken during the following 
calendar year. 

(d) How it May Be Taken: An eligible employee may take earned vacation 
leave in any increment of one (1) hour or more with the consent of the 
department head and the approval of the City Manager or designee. 

(e) Vacation Accumulation: As of January 1st of each year, the maximum 
vacation balance of an employee shall be no more than twice his/her 
annual vacation accrual. If an employee has accumulated two years worth 
of vacation leave during the calendar year, the maximum amount of leave 
can be no more than two years worth on January 15

\ or the employee will 
cease to accrue any additional vacation leave until the amount of vacation 
leave is brought to the (two) 2 year maximum of vacation leave. 
Exception: If an employee was administratively precluded from taking 
excess vacation by management cancellation of an approved scheduled 
vacation or the employee was administratively precluded from taking 
excess vacation by denial of a primary and at least two (2) alternate 
requests for vacation leave requested by the employee at least ninety (90) 
days prior to January 1, there will be a grace period provided to the 
employee as follows: The employee shall continue to accrue their vacation 
leave and will not lose any excess vacation accrual and will be allowed to 
use the excess leave during the next three (3) month period, January 1 -
March 31. If for any reason, management does not allow the employee to 
use their excess vacation accrual during this three (3) month period of 
time, the employee will be granted additional three (3) month period(s) of 
time, until at which time, the employee is allowed to utilize his/her excess 
vacation leave accrual. 

(f) Vacation Pav at Termination: Upon separation from services for any 
cause, an eligible employee who has completed at least one (1) year of 
active service shall be entitled to pay for the number of accumulated 
vacation days. A lump sum payment will be made as part of final 
paycheck. Vacation pay shall be at the employee's current rate of pay. 



(g_l Part-Time Employees: Temporary part-time employees shall not be 
eligible for vacation leave. Permanent part-time employees working more 
than twenty (20) hours a week are entitled to prorated vacation. 

r b l Military Leave: An employee who interrupts City employment because of 
extended mi1itary leave shall be compensated for accrued vacation at the 
time the leave becomes effective, if requested by the employee. This 1s 
governed by all applicable state and federal laws. 

(i) Double Compensation Prohibited: Employees shall not work for the City 
during their vacations. 



EXHIBIT "F" 

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH . ~ - ' . -

MiscELLANEOUS UNIT 

Flexible BenefiVFlan . 
1/1/20l2~io 12t3t/2oi2 :EI~:~tiori.Form 

' '· - • ' ' • -~ - ... -""' f " 

Employee ------------- Social Security Number 

Address 

The City of Imperial Beach Flexible Benefit Plan will provide a credit in the amount of $9,900 per plan year 
that can be used for the purchase of qualified benefits or received as a taxable cash benefit under certain 
circumstances. The credit is available to plan participants in equal amounts on a monthly basis. Employees 
can make an elective contribution if the Flexibl~ Benefit Plan Election total exceeds the Flexible Benefit 
Plan Credit. Employees and Dependents do not have to be enrolled for medical, dental or vision coverage to 
participate in the Health Care Spending Account. Dependents do not have to be enrolled in medical 
coverage to participate in the dental or vision plans. 

TotafMonthly 

Medical ( ) 
Code Plan Name 

Dental ( ) 
Code Plan Name --sii,ii~-i,;,j,io)iei co~iraie li ;;,;u-fi.ii i/ini<iti:~i --

/nsuranc~ is ~ltettd. 

Vision ( ) Vision Plan of Ameri'ca 
Code Plan Name 

Dependent Care Spending Account 
Maximum election is $5, 000 per calendar year, or $416.67 monthly 

Health Care Spending Account 
Maximum election is $1,040 for the plan year, or $86~67 monthly 

Total Flexible Benefit Plan Election II ~I 
Taxable Flexible-Benefit Plan Credit (MaximumJn-Lieu) <$400.00> 

Flexible Benefit Plan Credit <$875.00> 

I 
. - .,_ .- . 

I 
PRE-TAX CONTRIBUTION (Election is more than Credit) 

TAXABLE CASH BENEFIT (Credit is more than Election) 

Authorization Required (See Reverse Side) 



:--•p.~··,c+~'··.·.~fY.:,."~~" C)f ln).pe.ri;LB.each F,'l~'x~J?.f~~!a,ertefit Plan 
~J.···'·"'"'·'-"''"'·'~'-'~ .. '-'"'~o':". in-:therstatus:of~)d'~iJy: These are 
_.,...,,;:c~ .... 'J.JHE"-J.J.(:U 'Beach Flexible: Benefit Plan as 

. ·qfc~--~hild;mart!age; or .change in· 
o;,uncl.«~rS1~ahi:1·~ttla~lamr~< .., ... ,...._~------h .i.ru.rif.re.guired to· make for coverages 

"'" +·r.-n;-o.· deduc'tioff,of:cfualifled. payroll taxes. 

A,dditio!lally;f·~q~rs~~~~tlt~~.iij t_har1g~ my:·~~lecH§ri qrcease,to b~ a particiBariU~ .the City of 
:Imperial.· Beacp. ... Fl'e~}b~¢.;::§~P,~fit''PJ.fi11, arld,)iay_e:fec~iyecLt~irrJ.burse:gJ.ents frorp. the Health Care 
R.elmbursement'::A.c'c6~t'~:·ih;~f·exce~d:"iny ye~-to~date;deposit (leaving my. account· in a deficit 
position), I will be'-asked'to reimburse the Ci,ty. ofJmperial Beach Flexible Benefit Plan for the 
·~ount-of tlie.CiifiCit/ ~ ; · · · · · · · · 

D~te 

RAGE 

I: hereby. certi:fy-:tha(I, ·h~~~' J?_een: giyel). the.· O.PP9~tfumty.Jo elec! group insurarlce benefits that are 
• . . to ffii: thio:ughHhe City of !mpem_ru:::?13ectch Flex;ible ·Benefit Plar1. After careful 
~onsid~ratio~~.:r:li~v~ici;~~jci'ed ~otto:,ep,f611 ifi.~hl~tMioMiig'.~ovei-_dgeis) through· the Flexible Benefit 
Blar1 .. I understanddh?i'i.:r ;a.tn:~requirecf td sliow.~'prti'o{o'f' othei co~erage if I am waiving medical 
'insurar16e :foi-ni)rs\~rrt~· ·· ·~,.,_ .. · - · · <'"' ·· · - ·· · · 

Iiis my understariciiri{ili&tiri_the even~ that I desi!e such coverage(s) hereafter, I may not be able to 
enroll until the ri.ex't Plim y~irr. .. 

Participar1t Signature· . Date 



CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACI-I 

MEDICAL PLANS MONTHLY RATES 
JANUARY 1 2012 

BLUE SHIELD 
3041 Single Employee 583.60 

3042 Employee with One Dependent 1,167.20 

3043 Employee with Multiple Dependents 1,517.36 

BLUE SHIELD NET V AL!JE 
0641 Single Employee 501.93 
0642 Employee with One Dependent 1,003.86 
0643 Employee with Multiple Dependents 1,305.02 

KAISER 
3081 Single Employee 512.76 
3082 Employee with One Dependent 1,025.52 
3083 Employee with Multiple Dependents 1,333.18 

PERSSELECT 
0821 Single Employee 446.68 
0822 Employee with One Dependent 893.36 
0823 Employee with Multiple Dependents 1,161.37 

PERSCHOICE 
3231 Single Employee 526.19 
3232 Employee with One Dependent 1,052.38 
3233 Employee with Multiple Dependents 1,368.09 

PERSCARE 
3281 Single Employee 943.26 
3282 Employee with One Dependent 1,886.52 
3283 Employee with Multiple Dependents 2,452.48 

DENTAL PLAN MONTHLY RATES 
(Sin!fle Employee coveralfe is required if Medical insurance is elected) JANUARY 1, 2012 

DENTAL HMO PLAN 
I I Single Employee 20.26 
12 Employee with One Dependent 36.53 
13 Employee with Multiple Dependents 52.89 

TRADITIONAL PPO PLAN 
21 Single Employee 37.61 
22 Employee with One Dependent 68.14 
23 Employee with Multiple Dependents 107.99 

VISION PLANS MONTHLY RATES 

JANUARY 1, 2012 

VISION PLAN OF AMERICA 
31 Single Employee 9.73 
32 Employee with One Dependent 18.84 
33 Employee with Multiple Dependents 25.13 



EXHIBIT"G" 
City Manager Memorandum Stand-By Pay Authorization 

e 
To: Department Directors and Supervisors 

From: Marcia Raskin, Interim Assistant City Manager 

Date: 8/1 0/2009 

Re: STAND-BY PAY PROCEDURES AND AUTHORIZATION 

On, July 1, 2001, the City Manager authorized changes to stand-by procedures and gave authorization to designated 
represented classifications assigned to the Miscellaneous Classified Service employee labor group. 

Procedure and Compensation: 

Pursuant to Article 9.0 of the SEIU MOU, stand-by pay authorization for designated employees shall be subject to 
Department Director recommendation and City Manager approval. An employee may be required to be on "stand-by" 
subject to emergency call-back overtime after working hours and on weekends and holidays whereby personal time is 
limited. Employees designated to be on stand-by shall have a communication device (i.e. cell phone, pager, radio, 
etc.) issued by the authorized Department for the designated stand-by period. Employees authorized for stand-by pay 
shall be compensated at the following rates: 

a. For a normal workday stand-by shift, pay shall be two (2) hours per day. 

b. For a normal weekend stand-by shift (Saturday and Sunday), pay shall be three (3) hours per day. 

c. For a holiday stand-by shift observed in accordance with an SEIU M.O.U. pay shall be four (4) hours per 
day. 

Should you have any questions regarding this procedure, please contact Linda leichtle at 423-8617. 

City Manager Authorization: 

/~ ~-
GaryBro~ 
City Manager 

cc: Finance Director 
SEIU MOU Exhibit G 

oate: dtokr 



EXHIBIT H 

SIDE LETTER TO 
\1EMORA.~DUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BET'WEE~ SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, 
LOCAL 2028, AFL-CIO AND THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

ARTICLE 9.0 Hours of Work 

ALTERNATIVE 9/80 WORK SCHEDULE 

Erfective March 8, 2001. subject to vote of Union membership and adoption of Reso. No. 1001-538-1 
by the City Council on February 7, 2001. the CITY shall execute an administrative policy lor 
implementation nf an alternative 9/80 work schedule for affected Miscellaneous Classified Sen-ice 
employees in designated City operations and facilities. Although the administrative policy is JS 

specific as possible. the City and SEIU. Local 2028. Afl-CJO understand that there are ::lsp.:L·ts 
of such a work schedule that carmot be fully anticipated, and that the parties may ne~d to meet 
and discuss specifics as they arise. Ongoing implementation of program is also subject to ~n 
effective public education campaign and an annual review of program for continued consideration 
subject tu operational and financial imoacts. 

Pa:-roll implementation of the alternative 9/80 work schedule may cause a one-time impact to work 
schedules and a change to employee pay dates for City emplo)·ees in the M'tscellaneous Classitled 
Service to ensure timely payroll processing and compliance with the FLSA 40-hour workweek . 
. A.ITected City employees will be eligible to choose appropriate level of compensation of one (I) nine
hour noating holiday. or nine (9) hours of compensation or comp time to be used prior to June 30. 
~ (JQ I. 

Certificatioa: 

City ;\1ansger 

I 

I 
~.o..TE 

J,;{ l:l /! 
:vlsry Gr:illo, E.xecuti-Ve Director 
SEJU. Loc2l 2028, AFL-ClO 

/ 
/. 
/· 

DATE 



RESOLUTION NO. 2001-5384 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
BOARD OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING 
AN ALTERNATIVE 9/80 WORK SCHEDULE - CITYWIDE ENERGY AND 
COST REDUCTION MEASURE 

WHEREAS, California faces unprecedented energy challenges and severe electricity shortages; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Imperial Beach has already implemented energy curtailment strategies 
endorsed by the League of California Cities, as appropriate, and will continue to formalize further protocols 
and energy reduction programs to meet the Governor's 7% energy conservation goal; and 

WHEREAS, the employee labor association representing the Miscellaneous Classified Service has 
previously desired and communicated with City staff the implementation of an alternative 9/80 work 
schedule in previous labor negotiations; and 

WHEREAS, the City further acknowledges the benefits of an alternative 9/80 work schedule as an 
energy and cost reduction measure to curtail energy consumption, reduce City's general fund expenditures, 
and stabilize future expenditures to meet limited projected revenues; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach, 
Hereby authorizes the City Manager to implement the feasibility of an alternative 9/80 work schedule in 
applicable City Departments as a City-wide energy and cost reduction measure in all City facilities; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council authorizes the City Manager to seek 
approval by the Miscellaneous Classified Service Employee Association (I.e. SEIU, Local 2028, AFL
CIO); and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager' is authorized to execute an administrative 
policy for implementation in the next 30-45 days, with a public education campaign on extended City 
service hours. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach at its 
regular meeting held on the 7th day of February 2001, by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

ATTES 

ROSE, BENDA, WINTER, ROGERS, McCOY 
NONE 
NONE 

DIANlfROSE, MAY~ 





2.5











Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team

recovery Strategy

JANUARY 2012

Living with the  Water

ATTACHMENT 3



1

A Message from David Gibson
Executive Director; Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region

The Tijuana River Valley (Valley) has a decades-long history of water quality issues. Significant improvements in the arena of wastewater 
treatment have in recent years improved water quality on both sides of the border. However, stormwater flows continue to bring substantial 
amounts of sediment and trash and other contaminants into the Valley from sources in both the United States (U.S.) and Mexico. The sediment 
and trash pollutants cause water quality impairments, threaten life and property from flooding, degrade valuable riparian and estuarine 
habitats, and impact recreational opportunities for residents and visitors.

Many public agencies and non-profit organizations have worked tirelessly on both sides of the border to resolve the Valley’s water quality issues.  They have held 
cleanups, built a sediment basin, piloted trash capture devices, executed ecosystem restoration activities, purchased land, and performed many other projects.  
The Tijuana River Valley Recovery Strategy (Recovery Strategy) represents the work of representatives from these and other agencies with operational or land 
management authority in the Valley to reach consensus on actions to resolve sediment and trash issues.  The Recovery Strategy has also been reviewed and shaped 
by the thoughtful comments from stakeholders who live, work, and/or regularly visit the Valley.  These individuals collectively represent the Tijuana River Valley 
Recovery Team (Recovery Team).  

From the perspective of the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board), cleaning up sediment and trash in the Valley is a high priority. Since 
many of the sources of sediment and trash are outside of the jurisdiction of the agencies we regulate, the Regional Board has chosen to pursue a collaborative, 
stakeholder-led approach to address these problems. As the Regional Board’s Executive Officer, I firmly believe the approaches outlined in the Recovery Strategy 
can successfully reduce the sediment and trash currently degrading beneficial uses, including water quality, exacerbating flooding, affecting habitat and impacting 
recreation.  

The purpose of the Recovery Strategy is twofold.  First, it is intended to be a concise summary of the first phase of actions to cleanup the Valley and restore 
its beneficial uses.  Second, it is intended to outline the steps in a way that will allow stakeholders, policy makers, and potential funding sources have a clear 
understanding of both the problems and the solutions that will allow the Recovery Team to achieve its vision and mission.  Ultimately, members of the Recovery 
Team will implement the strategy through enhanced relationships and partnerships.  Finally, the Recovery Strategy acknowledges that resolution to the sediment 
and trash problems will require partnerships between the U.S. and Mexico to provide watershed-based solutions. The Recovery Team recognizes that source control 
and pollution prevention activities are often the best and most economically feasible long-term solutions to sediment and trash and other water quality problems. 
Accordingly, there is no time like the present to work together to build and enhance cross-border communication and relationships. This will lead to our common 
goals of a healthy Valley, free of pollutants, where plants and animals can thrive and residents, visitors, and landowners can enjoy the unique jewel that is the Tijuana 
River Valley. 

On behalf of the Regional Board, I would like to thank all of the members of the Recovery Team for the work that has been accomplished in developing this Recovery 
Strategy, and to offer our continuing support.  

David Gibson
co-chair, tijuana river valley recovery team

                         Attachment 3



2

the condition of the tijuana river Watershed
The Tijuana River watershed is a large and complex ecological system that 
straddles the international border between the U.S. and Mexico.  The watershed 
drains through a vibrant, urban environment adjacent to the border into the 
Valley, in the southwest corner of the U.S.  The Tijuana River flows from the 
watershed into the Tijuana Estuary and then into the Pacific Ocean. Sediment, 
trash, and other pollutants carried in stormwater runoff currently threaten the 
Valley’s valuable ecological, recreational and economic resources. This document 
provides a strategy for collaborative, bi-national efforts directed toward long-
term recovery and protection of this unique, irreplaceable resource. 

valley is a Unique resource
Estuaries are a hydrological and biological crossroads, defined as the 
portion of the coastal zone where there is interaction of ocean water, 
fresh water, land, and atmosphere. These areas are highly productive and 
support a wide range of biodiversity that includes rare and unique plants 
and animals. The Tijuana estuary is one of only two coastal estuaries 
in southern California large enough, and unimpeded by development,  
to be resilient to climate change. It is also the only coastal lagoon in southern 
California that is primarily under public ownership and not bisected by roads 
and railroads, which contributes to its ecological resiliency and value.  There 
are also important historical and cultural resources in the Valley. Accordingly, 
the estuary has been designated as a national research reserve (Tijuana River 
National Estuarine Research Reserve, or TRNERR) and is protected and managed 
through a federal-state cooperative effort for long-term research, education and 
interpretation.

The Valley is an important recreational resource, with more than 35 miles of 
multi-use trails for hiking, biking, equestrian and other uses. The surf offshore 
of the estuary is considered one of the best surf spots in southern California. 
Visitors can experience everything from dense riparian forests along the Tijuana 
River to coastal maritime sage scrub on top of Spooner’s Mesa to sandy beach 
habitat along the Pacific Ocean.  In addition to the Valley’s natural and cultural 
resources, there are active recreation fields, picnic areas, and a community 
garden.  

Several agencies have significant infrastructure investments in the Valley.  The 
U.S. Navy operates Navy Outlying Field Imperial Beach, which is one of its primary 
helicopter pilot training facilities on the West Coast on the northern periphery of 
the Valley at the Navy Outlying Field Imperial Beach.  

UNITED STATEStijuana river 
valley

MEXICO

p
a

c
if

ic
 o

c
e

a
n

city of tijUana

Tijuana River 
Watershed Boundary 

San diego coUnty

Tijuana River Watershed drains 1,700 miles to the Pacific Ocean through the Tijuana River Valley in  
southern San Diego County

The Tijuana estuary at the end of the Tijuana River, is a valuable ecological, cultural, and recreational 
resource. Currently, the sediment and trash pollutants threaten its health

recognized as a “high priority wetland of regional
significance” by the  Southern california Wetlands 
recovery Project.

 tijuana estuary is designated as one of only 25   

“wetlands of international importance”.
                                - international ramsar convention on Wetlands 2005

                         Attachment 3



3

U.S. Customs and Border Protection conducts operations in the Valley to 
support its border protection mission. The U.S. International Boundary and 
Water Commission (U.S. IBWC) operates the South Bay International Wastewater 
Treatment Plant which provides secondary treatment for average daily flows of 
25 million gallons of sewage that originates in Mexico.  

Agriculture has had a long historical presence in the Valley. Agricultural activities 
on private and leased lands include sustainable, organic farms that serve as a 
local source of fresh produce.  In addition, a Community Garden operated by the 
County of San Diego (County) allows local residents to grow their own produce.

Finally, there are many programs that utilize Valley resources for hands-on 
environmental education programs. From grade school to college level there 
are educational opportunities and interpretative programs developed to appeal 
to a wide audience. It is widely recognized that effectively communicating the 
value of and the issues facing the Valley will lead to broad public support for its 
protection. Communication combined with scientific knowledge serve as the 
ultimate foundation for long-term resource stewardship and funding. 

It is of critical importance to protect the Valley’s diverse and unique ecological, 
recreational, cultural, and educational opportunities and preserve this natural 
jewel that is located within a binational metropolitan area. This will lead to 
improved habitat, water quality, and ocean protection for citizens of both the 
U.S. and Mexico.

trash and Sediment threaten valley resources
Unfortunately, the Valley is increasingly threatened by stormwater flows that  
contain trash and high concentrations of other urban, agricultural, and industrial 
pollutants in the Tijuana River and its tributaries. Additionally, the soils in the 
watershed are highly susceptible to erosion, especially when disturbed. Due 
to urbanization, even moderate storms can bring significant flows of sediment 
downstream. As stormwater 
flows to the ocean, the 
intermixed sediment, trash and 
other debris are deposited in 
channels, among vegetation 
in the Valley floodplain, and in 
the estuary. These conditions 
create an environment where 
mosquitoes and other vectors 
can impact human health and 
the environment.  Also, storm 
flows transport exotic invasive 
plant species that threaten 
native  plant communities and 
negatively affect habitat for 
native wildlife. The interaction 
of sediment and trash deposits 
severely threaten habitat, water quality and other resources in the region. 

vision for the valley
The next step in protecting and restoring the Valley is to manage sediment 
and eliminate unwanted trash.  The collaborative approach promoted by the 
Recovery Team to integrate the diverse perspectives of scientific, environmental, 

The Tijuana River Valley is a unique 
resource with important salt marsh  
and riparian habitat, recreational  
opportunities, and operational base  
for border patrol and U.S. Navy  
operations

                         Attachment 3



4

regulatory and private stakeholders is intended to solve these problems. This 
Recovery Strategy identifies a path forward for implementing a collaborative, 
mutually beneficial plan across ownership and jurisdictional boundaries. It is 
intended to cost-effectively address sediment and trash issues while respecting 
natural and cultural resources, the roles and responsibilities of agency managers, 
and the needs of landowners residents, recreational users and visitors. The 
Recovery Strategy also thoughtfully considers existing policies and planning 
documents developed by local, regional, state and federal stakeholders. 

Past Successes and future challenges
Efforts to protect and restore Valley resources are not new; sediment management, 
land preservation and habitat restoration have been conducted in the Tijuana 
River watershed for many years.  Local, state, and federal management agencies, 
along with non-governmental organizations and other stakeholders have 
invested significant effort and funding in project planning and implementation 

both in the U.S. and in Mexico to improve conditions. Investments to improve 
wastewater treatment began in the 1980s and ‘90s. Recent activities have 
included pollution prevention and source control for sediment and trash, water 
quality improvements, flood control, improved recreational opportunities, and 
public education and outreach. These projects demonstrate the dedication and 
wealth of experience that the various operating agencies and stakeholders have 
invested in the Valley and watershed.  

The future brings many challenges for the Recovery Team. The bi-national nature 
of the watershed is one major obstacle.  It is well known that source control 
and pollution prevention activities can be the most cost-effective solutions to 
reduce sediment and trash loading. With the majority of the watershed situated 
in Mexico, planning and implementing source control and other projects across 
the international border present an added challenge to an already complex 
problem. Other challenges include: 

 » identifying long-term funding for operation and maintenance of sediment  
 and trash management facilities,

 » coordinating agencies in project review and approval, and

 » scheduling projects to meet short-term sediment and trash control needs  
 with long-term restoration goals while maximizing funding opportunities. 

 »U.S. Border 2020: U.S.-Mexico environmental Program (draft)
 Environmental Protection Agency 2011

 »tijuana river national estuarine research reserve comprehensive  
 Management Plan
 California State Parks, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration,   
 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 2010

 »tijuana river valley regional Park - area Specific Management    
 directives 
 County of San Diego 2007

 »a Binational vision for the tijuana Watershed 
 Binational Watershed Advisory Council for the Tijuana River Watershed 2005

 »Local coastal Program Land Use Plan 
 City of San Diego 1999

 »Multiple Species conservation Program Subarea Plan
 City of San Diego 1997

 »Water Quality control Plan for the San diego Basin (9)
 California Regional Water Quality Control Board Water San Diego Region 1994

Key tijuana river valley Planning documents:

activity Project type

approximate 
expenditure 

amount

U.S. Mexico

Wastewater  
Improvements

Treatment and reclamation plant 
design and construction $600M $100M

Sediment Control Basin design and construction, road 
paving, community projects $18M Unknown

Trash Control Cleanups, waste tire removal, studies $3M $0.5M

Flood Control Channel clearing, berm construction 
and removal $10M Unknown

Ecosystem  
Restoration and 
Protection

Habitat restoration, invasive control, 
land acquisition $33M Unknown

Summary of protection and restoration activities and expenditures in the Tijuana River watershed since the 1980s

                         Attachment 3



5

tijuana river Watershed description
The Tijuana River Watershed is an approximately 1,700-square mile area that 
straddles the U.S./Mexico international border. The watershed is a diverse 
and complex drainage system ranging from 6,000-foot pine forest-covered 
mountains to the tidal saltwater estuary at the mouth of the Tijuana River.  
Nearly three-quarters of the watershed is located in Mexico, but the watershed 
drains to the Pacific Ocean through the 8-square mile valley located adjacent to 
the border. The Valley is home to tidally flushed wetland, riparian, and upland 
habitats supporting a broad range of organisms, including threatened and 
endangered species.  In addition, a number of federally listed historical and 
archaeological sites exist in the Valley, some dating back 8,000 years.

A diversity of land uses are present in the watershed, from largely undeveloped 
open space in the upper watershed to highly-urbanized, residential, commercial, 
military, and industrial areas in the lower watershed. Rapid urbanization has 
occurred over the past several decades, most dramatically in the city of Tijuana 
where more than 2.7 million people currently reside.  Several large dams (Barrett 
and Morena in the U.S., and Rodríguez and El Carrizo in Mexico) control a large 
majority of the surface water flow in the watershed.  While these dams provide 
reservoirs of potable water to support residents and associated infrastructure 
on both sides of the border, they also serve as traps for the downstream 
movement of sediment and trash to the lower watershed.  Therefore, the 
sediment and trash produced in the 462-square mile area downstream of the 
dams are responsible for impacts to the Valley.   

Current land uses in the watershed include: A) urban areas B) semi-urban development  C) ranches in the Valley

p
a

c
if

ic
 o

c
e

a
n

a b

Diverse binational watershed with varied habitats: A) pine forest B) riparian habitat  C) salt marsh

a b c

c

Storm flows from nearly 75% of the watershed are controlled by four major dams. A significant portion of the area 
downstream of the dams is urbanized, especially in the city of Tijuana

Watershed Boundary
Watershed Area 
Downstream of Dams
Dam
Urbanized Area

tijuana river Watershed Statistics U.S. Mexico

Population within Watershed 11,000 2.7M

Watershed Area 468 mi2 1,256 mi2

Annual Precipitation 5.9 to 25.6 inches per year

                         Attachment 3



6

The Mission is to bring together the governmental, administrative, 
regulatory, and funding agencies in tandem with advice from the scientific 
community, the environmental community, and affected stakeholders to 
protect the Tijuana River Valley from future accumulations of trash and 
sediment, identify, remove, recycle or dispose of existing trash and sediment, 
and restore the Tijuana River floodplain to a balanced wetland ecosystem.

The Vision is a Tijuana River Valley free of historical trash and sediment, 
protected from future deposits of trash and sediment, restored to a sustained 
physical, chemical and biological integrity, and performing its hydrologic 
functions, while respecting the interests of current and future landowners 
and users.

 » Bi-national collaboration

 » operation and maintenance of sustainable trash and sediment controls

 » flood control to protect life and property

 » Hydrologically connected, naturally functioning habitats

 » Maintenance of recreation opportunities

 » informed and engaged community

 » Long-term plan to restore the floodplain and estuary 

 » respect existing uses

General Recovery Team Goals

Recovery Team Signatory Members
Non-Pro�t

Organizations & Public
Public Agency

Stakeholder Input
Existing Planning

Documents

Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team (TRVRT)

V I S I O N

INTEGRATED IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

}  }

tijUana river vaLLey recovery teaM 
recovery Strategy

What is the tijuana river valley recovery team?
The Recovery Team is a collaboration of more than 30 federal, state and local 
agencies and other interested parties from both sides of the border focused 
on addressing sediment, trash, and associated environmental issues. The 
collaborative stakeholder-led approach to integrate the diverse scientific, 
environmental, regulatory and private stakeholder perspectives with the 
existing planning documents of this Recovery Strategy is intended to reduce 
the impacts of anthropogenic (human caused) sediment and trash on the 
Valley’s resources.  

The activities described in this document summarize the Recovery Team’s 
efforts to combine the collective knowledge, enthusiasm, and resources of 
the many agencies and groups that are seeking solutions to sediment and 
trash issues. The management areas of sediment and trash, flood control, 
ecosystem management, and recreation and education, described on the 
following pages, present the current conditions as we consider the future of 
the Valley. The Recovery Team utilized its collaborative approach to analyze 
these various management needs and develop and prioritize projects in a 
manner consistent with the future vision for the Valley.

                         Attachment 3



7

community programs and cleanups on the Mexican side of the international 
border will have a positive impact in downstream areas. 

Sediment
The approach to sediment management varies by drainage into the Valley and 
estuary. Sediment discharged from Goat Canyon directly impacts salt marsh 
habitat, which has been steadily degraded. 

Sediment and trash
goal: Utilize partnerships among public land owners, public operating 
agencies, non-governmental organizations, residents and volunteers 
in the U.S. and Mexico to reduce sources of and cost-effectively manage 
sediment and trash pollutants.

current Situation
Sediment and trash are degrading the Valley and estuary and threatening public 
health and safety throughout the Tijuana River watershed.  Stormwater flows 
transport sediment and trash from urban areas downstream into the Valley. The 
urban population in the city of Tijuana continues to grow rapidly as jobseekers 
from throughout Latin America seek opportunity near the international border. 
Infrastructure improvements, such as paved roadways and waste management 
services, have been unable to keep pace with growth. Often this situation can 
lead to problems such as accelerated erosion and illicit disposal of trash and 
other waste materials in canyons and neighborhoods both in incorporated and 
unincorporated areas of the city. In addition, basic development practices in 
many areas of the watershed have resulted in disturbance of natural drainage 
patterns and vegetation removal from slopes, making them unstable and prone 
to erosion. Storm flows mobilize and then transport the sediment and trash 
downstream, threatening the health of riparian and estuarine habitats in both 
the U.S. and Mexico and reducing the flow capacity of the river and tributary 
channels.  While sediment and trash are linked because both are transported by 
storm flows, these pollutants behave differently in the water column and must 
be managed differently. 

Organizations on both sides of the border recognize that source reduction 
can provide the most cost-effective means of addressing these issues. 
Community programs have been initiated to improve source control of these 
materials through generating awareness, changing trash disposal practices and 
conducting cleanups with volunteers. Further infrastructure improvements,  

Three major tributaries, Yogurt Canyon, 
Goat Canyon and Smuggler’s Gulch, 
and the main Tijuana River each con-
tribute sediment and trash to the Valley 
in different ways

U.S. Project Area
Yogurt Canyon Watershed 
(Cañon los Sauces)
Goat Canyon Watershed 
(Cañon de los Laureles)
Smuggler’s Gulch Watershed 
(Cañon de los Mataderos)

p
a

c
if

ic
 o

c
e

a
n

Smuggler’s Gulch

pilot channel

                         Attachment 3



8

 Management of sediment and trash can be accomplished through cross-border  
 partnering, collaboration and exchange of knowledge at all levels in government  
 and among agencies on both sides of the border.

To control degradation, California State Parks (State Parks) constructed two 
sediment basins just downstream of the international border in 2006. The basins 
were designed to provide maximum sediment storage capacity within the space 
available for construction.  In most wet seasons, the basins intercept a majority 
of the sediment. In very wet seasons, as in 2005, the basins filled and 18 acres of 
salt marsh was smothered by up to 4 feet of sediment in a single storm event.

In Smuggler’s Gulch, excessive sediment loads reduce the capacity of natural 
channels to carry storm flows, which exacerbates flooding that adversely 
impacts residential, agricultural and recreational property in the Valley. When 
resources are available, the City of San Diego (City) and County clear sediment 
from Smuggler’s Gulch to maintain its capacity to carry storm flows and minimize 
the effects of flooding. The County removes approximately 15,000 cubic yards of 
trash, waste tires, and accumulated sediment each time it clears the channel from 
Smuggler’s Gulch south of Monument Road.  Also, in the early 1990s,  the City 

excavated an earthen channel (known as 
the Pilot Channel) to direct larger storm 
flows away from the northern portion of 
the Valley where flooding has resulted 
in  significant damage to public and 
private property. Since then, the City 
has frequently cleared the Pilot Channel 
and Smuggler’s Gulch channel north of 
Monument Road to reduce flood risk. 
Each channel clearing results in the 
removal of approximately 30,000 to 
60,000 cubic yards of sediment, trash and waste tires. Despite this costly ongoing 
maintenance to control flooding, it continues to negatively affect residents and 
infrastructure. Sedimentation is also rapidly changing the topography which has 
a negative impact on the ecology of the Valley.

The main Tijuana River channel is where the majority of the stormwater, sediment 
and trash enters the U.S. Historically, much of the sediment has been carried 
downstream into the Valley. Over time, the downstream areas have served as 
a sink for accumulated sediment, resulting in an increase in vegetation.  This 
causes storm flows to flood and deposit additional  sediment and trash.  For the 
first time, U.S. IBWC has allocated funds in its 2012 budget to remove sediment 
and trash from the upper part of the U.S. IBWC Tijuana River Valley Flood Control 
Project area adjacent to the border.  

Over the years, sediment management operations have increased in frequency 
and cost.  Operations entail excavating material from the basins or managed 
channels, sorting trash and tires from sediment, and disposing of all material 
properly. Annual costs vary widely depending on volumes excavated and 
availability of local disposal options. For example, disposal of sediment from the 
Goat Canyon basins alone ranges from $250,000 when a material operator uses 

Periodic storm events can cause up to several feet of sediment to deposit in the Valley

                         Attachment 3



Sediment and trash Management in cañon de Los Laureles
in cañon de Los Laureles, a california coastal conservancy-funded watershed 
diagnostic was prepared by a team of scientists at the Mexican institute of 
Water technology. this work guided implementation of several community-
based source control projects and urban policy changes using significant bi-

national investment from local, state and federal agencies.

 » Master Plan - The first watershed-based urban plan in Mexico was prepared  
 for Los Laureles Canyon.  The plan was signed into Baja California public law in  
 2007. 

 » re-vegetation – 96 acres of previously bare slopes were re-vegetated using   
 native drought-tolerant plants.

 » Permeable Paving – A permeable paver manufacturing and installation   
 program was developed for  public walkways and roads to reduce runoff and   
 erosion.  

 » reuse of tires and Plastic Bottles – A demonstration project for construction  
 using waste tires and eco-bricks made from plastic water bottles was installed  
 in a public park. 

 » trash Pickup – Over 700 tons of trash was collected from the Canyon through  
 a temporary employment program for local residents. 

funding agencies
the city of tijuana and the federal Social development agency- $200,000

Southern california Wetlands recovery Project- $50,000 

U.S. ePa Border 2012 - cañon Lumpio Project - $50,000

SeMarnat (Secretaría de Medio ambiente y recursos naturales) - $112,500

 9

the material in local building projects to $1.2M when it is transported to a local 
landfill. These costs exceed local, state, and federal operating budgets, and grant 
programs are reluctant to fund ongoing operation and maintenance activities. 
In an effort to stabilize and reduce costs, City, County, State Parks and U.S. IBWC 
began investigating a suite of alternative local reuse options, including using 
the sediment to replenish beach sand and restore upland areas. In addition, 
the mayor of Tijuana has provided $1M of funding for sediment removal from 
channels in the city of Tijuana.

trash
Trash is only incidentally addressed through current management practices. 
Heavier trash, such as tires, are imbedded in the sediment excavated from basins 
and channels. Floatable trash behaves differently; it is more easily transported 
even in low flows and can be transported by wind.  As part of the Goat Canyon 
sediment basin project, trash nets were installed to trap surficial trash and 
debris. These nets are thought to be effective in areas where flow velocities 

are relatively low.  However, maintaining the nets can be difficult and labor 
intensive, especially during particularly wet years, since sediment and trash also 
accumulate upstream of the nets.

Cleanup of trash is important to minimize the impact from transport throughout 
the Valley.  Several non-governmental organizations conduct cleanups of trash 

$2.5M

$1.5M

$1M

$1M

$3M $3M

$38K

$54K $67K

$1M

$2.5M

$240K

$380K

EX
CA

VA
TE

D
 M

AT
ER

IA
L 

(X
 1

,0
00

 C
U

BI
C 

YA
RD

S)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

ESTIMATED COSTS

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

City of San Diego
California State Parks

City of San Diego and 
California State Parks 
Sediment Excavation 
Costs 1999-2011

                         Attachment 3



10

and waste tires in the Valley.  However, the timing and frequency of these activities 
are limited due to permit restrictions related to threatened and endangered 
species’ breeding season(s), access constraints during the wet weather season, 
and health and safety concerns to volunteers. 

Looking to the future
A watershed approach to sediment and trash management that simultaneously 
reduces pollutant sources, actively captures at key watershed locations, and 
uses ecosystem processes to naturally transport sediment through the Valley to 
the ocean is an ultimate goal. The Recovery Team has initiated dialogue with its 
counterparts in Mexico to jointly plan, conduct and operate a suite of source 
reduction and capture measures throughout the bi-national watershed. The 
projects in Cañon de Los Laureles demonstrate that such a partnership can be 
mutually beneficial and effective.

Since source reduction and capture may never be completely sufficient, the 
river and estuary fluvial geomorphology need to be used to increase sediment 
transport capacity.  TRNERR, with State Parks, the US Fish and Wildlife Service, 
the Coastal Conservancy and the Southwest Wetlands Interpretative Association, 
have conducted a feasibility study to restore the southern portion of the estuary 
to enhance the tidal prism to accommodate elevated sediment loads.  Similarly, 
past changes to the watershed’s hydrology can be reversed to re-establish 
the natural capacity of the river to carry storm flows and sediment and more 
naturally connect waterways throughout the Valley.

Despite reducing costs by sharing facilities and contractors and creating options 
for local sediment reuses, a sustainable financing mechanism for operations 
and maintenance must be secured in order to responsibly invest in additional  
infrastructure.

Construction of retaining walls using waste tires may be a way to beneficially reuse waste and reduce sources of trashSediment basins constructed in Goat Canyon capture up to 60,000 cy of sediment from the Cañon de Los Laureles 
watershed each year

                         Attachment 3



11

Since the 1920s, urban expansion and associated infrastructure development in 
the watershed increased significantly. Major changes are described below.

 »Four dams, which control upstream flows from approximately 73% of the 
watershed, were constructed to provide water supply reservoirs to both 
the U.S. and Mexico. 

 »The Tijuana River Valley Flood Control Project was constructed to contain 
an approximate 500-year storm event in the main river as it enters the 
U.S. from Mexico.

 »A one-mile-long earthen “pilot” channel was constructed to direct flows 
away from a northern channel that formed during a flooding event in 
1993.    

 »Conagua has nearly completed construction of a concrete-lined channel 
on the Rio Alamar for an upstream distance of approximately 6 miles 
(10km).

These changes have led to management challenges for the  federal and local 
agencies, including U.S. IBWC, County, and City, responsible for flood control 
in the Valley. Based on the current channel configuration and condition, 
an approximately 5-to 10-year flood, representing a flow of between 7,000 
and 14,000 cubic feet per second (cfs), can cause localized flooding along  
Monument Road and Hollister Street, 
and on private and leased properties 
in the Valley. During these flooding 
events, vehicular access in and out of 
the Valley is limited, residences and 
other infrastructure are impacted, 
and border protection operations 
can be impeded.

In order to address localized flooding issues, the City and U.S. IBWC perform 
channel maintenance and clearing activities to remove accumulated sediment 
and trash. These costly operation and maintenance activities are needed on 

Stormwater (flood) control
goal: foster natural hydrological connectivity between estuarine 
and riparian habitats while minimizing flooding of public and private 
infrastructure.

current Situation
The Tijuana River has historically functioned as a dynamic river system in its 
natural state. In a dynamic system, channels that convey water during major 
storm events shift location over time, depending on channel and vegetation 
stability, storm event size and frequency, large-scale climatic dynamics and other 
factors.  Development related to agriculture, ranching and residential activities 
in the watershed and Valley over the past 100 years has significantly changed 
the hydrology of the river and made flood control a major issue in managing 
this dynamic system. Further, as a result of major flood events in the 1980s and 
‘90s, berms were constructed on several properties to direct floodwaters away 
from existing infrastructure. In some cases, these changes have reduced channel 
capacity and may be responsible for an increase in upstream flooding.

                         Attachment 3



12

nearly an annual basis to control flooding. In order to conduct the channel 
clearing operations, public notification, environmental permitting, and 
biological and cultural monitoring are necessary-at considerable cost.  It is 
estimated that these costs, including disposal fees, are approximately $100-
$120 per cubic yard of material removed. 
 
Looking to the future
Future goals regarding flood control activities in the Valley include balancing 
short-term needs to reduce flood risk, prevent property damage, and protect 
life with long-term ecosystem restoration, recreation and public use activities.  
The need for this balanced approach in the Valley has been discussed in various 
planning documents where, in general, man-made flow constraints such as 
berms are prohibited without comprehensive agency review and cost-benefit 
analysis. The Recovery Team also recognizes that controlling flooding in the 
Valley is dependent upon partnership and coordination with Mexican and U.S. 
agencies responsible for dam operations. Given the relative amount of dam-
controlled watershed area and water storage capacity of existing dams, ill-timed 
and/or large releases of water could cause significant flooding in the Valley.

It is understood that conducting 
focused hydrological and hydraulic 
studies is key to the Valley recovery 
process. Understanding existing 
conditions, including the capacities of 
channels, will lead to cost-effective and 
environmentally-sound flood control 
and stormwater management strategies 
that are in balance with long-term 
ecosystem restoration goals.  

Focused hydrology and hydraulic studies will allow:

 »floodplain delineation to inform policy and project implementation 
decisions,

 »detailed mapping of existing berms, dense vegetation, and other flow 
impediments that influence stormwater flows, and identification of 
current vegetation conditions and other physical characteristics that 
influence stormwater flows, and

 »improved understanding of processes that naturally transport sediment 
from the watershed to the ocean through the riparian and estuarine 
habitats in the Valley.

Additionally, sediment and trash source control and pollutant capture activities 
in the watershed are likely to reduce the need for costly ongoing operations 
and maintenance activities designed to reduce flooding risk in the Valley.  The 
coordination and prioritization of these activities through the Recovery Team 
are key to providing sustainable, long-term solutions to effective stormwater 
management.

Pa
th

: G
:\g

is
\p

ro
je

ct
s\1

57
7\

27
67

90
38

\m
ap

_d
oc

s\
m

xd
\F

lo
od

s.m
xd

,  
09

/2
3/

10
,  

Pa
ul

_M
or

en
o

floodplain delineation and flow modeling are key needs to inform policy and project decisions

U.S. Project Area
Estimated 25-Year 
Floodplain
Estimated 100-Year 
Floodplain

Future goals for flood control activities in the Valley include balancing short-term needs 
to reduce flood risk, prevent property damage, and protect life with long-term ecosystem 
restoration, recreation and public use activities

                         Attachment 3



13

ecosystems
goal: creation of a sustainable, interconnected complex of natural habitats 
that supports native species, provides valuable ecosystem services, and 
offers opportunities for education and research.

current Situation
The Tijuana River watershed historically has consisted of well-developed 
estuarine, riparian, transitional, and upland habitats. Although the physical 
footprint of the Valley today is similar to what existed historically, its ecosystems 
have changed over time. 

The Valley was largely agricultural from the 1920s through the 1960s, especially 
in the eastern, non-tidal areas.  Since then, many agricultural fields have been 
retired and marked habitat recovery has occurred in many parts of the Valley. 
These changes are reflected  in the broad, ecosystem-based goals outlined in 
resource planning documents prepared for the Valley. Activities performed 

in support of these planning documents have resulted in many habitat 
improvements in recent years, including:

 » active habitat and species protection,
 » invasive species management,
 » public acquisition of property,
 » shifting agricultural practices and transition to sustainable, organic   

 farming,
 » ecosystem restoration, particularly in the tidal salt marsh,
 » compensatory mitigation, particularly in the riparian zone,
 » other “passive” restoration, such as roads and trails being retired and   

 restored, and

 » water quality improvements related to advances in wastewater treatment  
 and infrastructure.

The Valley’s intrinsic habitat, coupled with continuing ecosystem recovery 
efforts over recent decades make it one of the largest, least developed, and 
best-studied coastal wetland ecosystems in southern California.  Also, the 
recent establishment of the Tijuana River Mouth State Marine Conservation 
Area, offshore of the estuary, presents an opportunity to foster a truly unique 
integration of habitats and ecosystem-based programs in coastal California.  

Unlike most other coastal wetlands in southern California, the footprint of the 
Valley today is similar to what existed in the 1850s  

 

Excerpt fr

Invasive S

 

One of th
Control P
with hund
managem

 

 

 

rom Administ

Species Eradic

e ecosystem 
rogram.  This
dreds of acres
ment will be a 

rative Draft 1

cation Picture

management
 has focused 
s successfully
focus of futu

10‐4‐11  in Bry

e 

t success stor
on the contro
y restored to n
ure ecosystem

yn Evan’s Tex

ries over the l
ol of invasive
native habita
m managemen

xt_V7.doc 

last decade is
 perennial pla
ts.  Continued
nt in the Valle

s the Valley's 
ants througho
d and expand
ey. 

Invasive Spec
out the Valley
ded invader 

 

cies 
y, 

Invasive species control and habitat restoration programs have helped restore hundreds of acres of habitat in the 
Valley over the past 20 years 

                         Attachment 3



14

Despite the improvements in the overall extent and quality of habitats in the 
Valley, significant issues remain. These stem in large part from the influx of 
sediment and trash, altered hydrology, continued pollution during wet weather, 
and invasive species. These issues must be addressed to continue the ongoing 
improvement in the health of the Valley ecosystem and make the habitats less 
vulnerable to future adverse changes, particularly sea level rise associated with 
climate change.

Looking to the future
From an ecosystem perspective, the broad ecological visions for the Valley 
espoused in existing planning documents—that of a largely natural, 
interconnected complex of habitats that support native plants and animals, as 
well as passive recreation opportunities for people—are fundamental goals.  
This vision was designed to maximize natural processes and respect existing 
stakeholders and landowners, while allowing for the need to adapt to changing 
environmental conditions, such as those due to climate change. 

The key benefits of restoring the ecosystem include minimizing flood risk, 
improving water quality in the estuary and ocean, providing environmental 
buffering, supporting sensitive species, improving recreational value, 
supporting education and outreach, and providing research opportunities 
leading to adaptive management strategies.  Such efforts will also make the 

 The Recovery Strategy is aligned with the broad ecological vision espoused in prior  
 planning documents - that of a largely natural, interconnected complex of habitats that  
 support native plants and animals, as well as passive recreation opportunities for people.

system more resilient to sea level rise and changing watershed inputs. This 
is particularly important in the Valley, as it is the wetland system in southern 
California most likely to be able to adapt to changing climate due to its limited 
development, relatively intact habitats, and broad buffer areas.

The strategies that have been offered to achieve these goals rely on past  
successes in the Valley. The strategy includes: conserving and protecting the 
healthy aspects of the ecosystem, restoring the degraded portions of the 
ecosystem; adapting land use practices to align with broad ecosystem-based 
goals on publicly owned land; restoring habitat damaged by redundant and 
unnecessary roads and trails, restoring abandoned sites (e.g., quarries); assessing 
the continuation of agricultural and other leases; continuing to engage private 
property owners in the restoration process; purchasing properties from willing 
sellers for public use; and obtaining conservation easements and development 
rights on private and public lands.

One of the focus areas for the future is resolving the hydrologic problems 
that preclude the natural flow of water. Obstructions to flow in the Valley  
compromise both the healthy functioning of the intact tidal / riparian wetland 
complex, as well as exacerbate flood risk to properties and businesses in the 
Valley.  A key principle for ecological restoration in the Valley is the recognition 
that improving hydrologic connectivity and increasing tidal exchange will not 
only benefit habitats, but also enhance the natural ability of the ecosystem to 
convey flood waters and effectively transport sediment through the system to 
the ocean, where it is needed to replenish sand on beaches.

institutions Performing research and Monitoring activities  
in and around the valley 

 » tijuana river national estuarine research reserve 
 » San diego State University 
 » University of california San diego
 » University of california Santa Barbara
 » University of San diego
 » Scripps institution of oceanography
 » over 15 public and private educational institutions, federal partnerships,  

 and other organizations

                         Attachment 3



15

recreation Systems and education
goal: coordinate recreation and education activities in the valley with 
trash and sediment management in order to provide social, economic and 
environmental benefits for residents, visitors and land managers.

current Situation
The Valley has a long history of use as a resource and recreational area.  The 
Valley and the estuary is a premier recreational resource for hikers, bird 
watchers, naturalists, equestrians, school children and other members of the 
public. These users recognize and value the Valley’s unique setting and serve 
as stewards to improve and enhance the recreational experience in the Valley. 
There is evidence that the Valley was used by native people and hunters for 
hundreds of years. Since the early 20th century, the region around the Valley, 
particularly Imperial Beach, has served as a summer retreat for Imperial Valley 
residents and other visitors. Horse racing became popular in the city of Tijuana 
in the 1920s; the Valley served as a location for stables for horse breeders and 
owners. In 1964, California voters approved funding to acquire the property 
that later became Border Field State Park. 

During the same period, developers lobbied the federal government and 
local landowners to build a marina in the estuary.  In 1971, President Nixon 
announced that Border Field would be developed for recreational use as part 
of his “Legacy of Parks” program, and 372 acres became part of Border Field 
State Park, preserving the southern flank of the estuary and mesa area adjacent 
to the international border. Meanwhile, local biologists Joy Zedler and Paul 
Jorgensen, along with Dr. Mike McCoy, a wildlife veterinarian, organized local 
environmentalists and Imperial Beach residents to build support for the estuary’s 
preservation. While Imperial Beach residents voted in favor of the marina project 
in 1980, the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service purchased the northern 500 acres of 
the estuary, establishing the Tijuana Slough National Wildlife Refuge. Despite 
opposition from developers, the estuary (both State Parks and National Wildlife 

Refuge land) became part of the U.S. Department of Commerce’s National 
Estuarine Sanctuary Program in 1982, and was designated a National Estuarine 
Research Reserve.  

Currently, recreational opportunities within the Valley are managed by multiple 
agencies. TRNERR is managed under a partnership between the U.S. and the State 
of California that links the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, 
State Parks, and the U. S. Fish & Wildlife Service. State Parks operates the Visitor 
Center and maintains Border Field State Park. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
manages the Tijuana Slough National Wildlife Refuge. Several regional agencies 
and local municipalities share ownership and management responsibilities at 
the Reserve. 

The Tijuana River Valley Regional Park (Regional Park) occupies more than 1,700 
acres and is the largest recreational area in the Valley. It was established in 1996 
by the County.  Through grants and other funding mechanisms, the County 
has spent over $20 million in the acquisition of properties for open space. The 
Regional Park’s 35 miles of trails connect to an extensive system of trails that 
provide visitors access to the Valley from Dairy Mart Road to the beach.  This 

Students can learn valuable lessons about the environment through educational programs conducted in the Valley

                         Attachment 3



16

  ... a wealth of recreation and education opportunities exist for hikers, bird watchers,  
 naturalists, equestrians, school children and other members of the public.

trail network is the only place along the southern California coastline where 
horseback riding is allowed on the beach.  In addition, a County sports facility is 
located north of the main river channel east of Hollister Street. 

The Valley provides many opportunities for public education about the 
importance of wetlands ecosystems and the many facets of the Valley’s 
current uses and history. The combination of salt marsh and riparian wetlands, 
complemented by upland habitat, mixed human uses, and cultural resources, 
provide interpretive opportunities for these resources.  The Tijuana Estuary 
Visitor Center incorporates educational and volunteer opportunities for 
students from local schools and the general public. These activities include 
everything from classes and bird walks to planting native vegetation and 
removing non-native plants. The Tijuana River National Estuarine Research 
Reserve has been providing educational and interpretive opportunities to pre-
kindergarten to college age students. The Tijuana Estuary Explorers and Junior 
Rangers programs are examples of ecology-based curriculum designed to 
inform future stewards of the watershed. Non-government organizations also 
provide educational tours and volunteer opportunities in the Valley.

Looking to the future
The agencies and non-government organizations that provide recreation will 
continue their efforts and plan to expand programs. Expansion of volunteer 

!"̂$

Aò

BEYER
BL

IMPERIAL BEACH BL

P
IC

AD
O

R
B

L

CORONADO (SB) AV

BE
YE

R
W

Y

TOCAYO AV

CORONADO (SB) AV

Pa
th

: G
:\g

is
\p

ro
je

ct
s\1

57
7\

27
67

90
38

\m
ap

_d
oc

s\
m

xd
\T

ra
ils

 a
nd

 H
ist

or
ic

 C
ha

nn
el

s.m
xd

,  
09

/2
3/

10
,  

Pa
ul

_M
or

en
o

SOURCES: SANDAG, 2009.  SanGIS, 2009.
                    Kimley Horn, 2010, FWS, 2010.

planting and restoration programs, improvement of equestrian facilities and 
construction of the planned recreational facility and playing fields on the 
north edge of the Valley are all part of enhancing recreational and educational 
opportunities. Community-based social marketing would be an excellent tool 
to help reach the community in order to meet the behavior change goals of this 
Strategy and develop the best techniques to influence community members on 
both sides of the border.

The trail system, which is beneficial to multiple users, is continually revaluated 
in order to provide a high quality experience and access to the Valley while 
protecting habitat value.  Picnic tables, benches, and small-scale horticultural 
and gardening areas will be developed where appropriate.  The alignment of 
the southernmost segments of the California Coastal Trail is the final planning 
stages and is expected to culminate at Monument Mesa. This will eventually 
provide trail users coastal trail access from the international border to the 
Oregon coast.  

The extensive system of trails in the Valley, is one of the few places in southern California where recreational users 
can walk from riparian habitat to the beach

The Valley provides a unique opportunity where equestrians can ride from picturesque riparian habitat to the beach

                         Attachment 3



17

This Strategy, and the overall Recovery Team, recognize that there are several specific areas or parcels where existing or planned uses conflict 
with the long-term Recovery Concept. As an example, existing planning documents, public agency stakeholders, and others have recognized 
the importance of preserving the region’s cultural heritage and respecting existing residential, agricultural, and other land uses in areas of the 
Valley subjected to frequent flooding. However, agencies responsible for cost-efficient floodplain management have also recognized the need 
to balance flood protection for properties and infrastructure within the 25-year floodplain in the short-term with long-term strategies to reduce 
flooding risk and enhance natural ecosystems and processes. Accordingly, the Recovery Team has developed this Strategy to document the iterative,  
integrated, multi-stakeholder planning and implementation approach to coordinate and maximize the cost efficiency of recovery efforts in the Valley.

!"̂$

%&s(

Aò

PALM (SB) AV

BEYER BL

PICADO
R

BL

IMPERIAL BEACH BL CORONADO (SB) AV

EAST BEYER
BL

S
M

Y
TH

E
AV

BE
YE

R
W

Y

SR-75

TOCAYO AV

CORONADO (SB) AV

BE
YE

R
W

Y

Pa
th

: G
:\g

is
\p

ro
je

ct
s\1

57
7\

27
67

90
38

\m
ap

_d
oc

s\
m

xd
\G

ra
ph

ic
s\

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n_
20

12
01

25
.m

xd
, p

au
l_

m
or

en
o,

 1
/2

6/
20

12
, 3

:5
0:

10
 P

M

SOURCES: ESRI, SANDAG, 2009.  SanGIS, 2009.

MonUMent road
H

o
LL

iS
te

r 
St

re
et

dair
y M

art r
oad

navy oUtLying fieLd
iMPeriaL BeacH

PiLot 
cHanneL

tijUana river
nationaL eStUarine
reSearcH reServe

riParian
SaLt MarSH
MeSa

SPooner’S
MeSa

SoUtH Bay
internationaL

WaSteWater 
treatMent PLant

tijUana river
fLood controL Project

tijUana river vaLLey
regionaL ParK

Mapping the recovery Strategy
As part of the Recovery Strategy, a Proposed Recovery Concept (Recovery Concept) 
was developed. The Recovery Concept integrates the basic principles for flood 
control, recreation, protection of cultural and natural resources, and ecosystem 
restoration previously adopted in the region’s planning documents while 
recognizing the need for sediment and trash control areas, and maintaining U.S. 
Navy operations, border security, and other needs. Consistent with the region’s 
planning documents, the Recovery Concept integrates river flow improvements, 
such as removal of man-made impediments, and water quality improvement 
practices, balanced with flood management, ecosystem restoration, compatible 
agriculture and recreational uses.

eXiSting HaBitat:

                         Attachment 3



tidaL SaLt MarSH

MiXed BUffer
HaBitat

MiLitary
oPerationS

Proposed recovery concept

18

agricULtUre 
&

infraStrUctUre

riParian foreSt

MeSa HaBitat

Border SecUrity

tranSitionaL/MiXed USe

infraStrUctUre

agricULtUre & active recreation

2 5 - Y E A R  F L O O D P L A I N

Managed cHanneL

SMUggLer’S gULcH 
WaterSHed cHanneLgoat canyon

WaterSHed cHanneL

riParian
SaLt MarSH
MeSa

Key components of the Proposed recovery concept include:

ecoSySteM areaS
•	 A large tidal salt marsh area in the western portion of the Valley.
•	 A broad, central riparian forest within the 25-year floodplain (Note: several privately owned parcels are located within this area).
•	 A mesa habitat bordering the southern edge of the Valley with chaparral, sage scrub and grasslands. 
•	 A mixed-buffer habitat between the upland/mesa habitat and the lowland riparian/salt marsh areas.  This area could provide eco-

system resiliency to potential sea-level rise by providing raised topographic areas where salt marsh habitat can migrate in periods 
of inland sea water inundation. 

HUMan USe areaS
•	 Two agriculture and active recreation areas to accommodate existing residential and recreation uses.
•	 A transitional/mixed-use area with existing residences, ranches and other uses.

infraStrUctUre and oPerationS areaS
•	 Three managed channels envisioned for sediment and trash control in the main river and two major tributaries to the Valley.
•	 existing and future infrastructure, primarily the Valley’s two wastewater plants and a planned sediment repository.
•	 Border security area along the southern portion of the Valley.
•	 Military operations NAS Imperial Beach Outlying Field.

                         Attachment 3



A
Partnership
with Mexico

B
Understand

Flow

C
Reduce
Sources

D
Implement

Capture

E
O&M

F
Involve & 

Inform

G
Natural

Resources

19

Priority Action Areas
By combining the goals required for successful sediment and trash management, 
flood control, ecosystem restoration, and recreation and education needs with 
the broad, integrated management themes captured in the Proposed Recovery 
Concept, the Recovery Team identified seven Priority Action Areas for work in 
the initial phase of Recovery. The Priority Action Areas are described below.

A. Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions

B. Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow

C. Reduce Sources of Sediment and Trash

D. Implement Sediment and Trash Capture Devices in the Watershed

E. Fund and Perform Ongoing Operations and Maintenance (O&M) 

F. Involve and Inform the Community in Mexico and U.S.

G. Protect and Enhance Natural Resources

  

Priority action area Linkage
The results of projects described in each of the Priority Action Areas affect 
what future work will be needed to restore the Valley. There is a level of 
interdependence between each of the Priority Action Areas, and each may be 
conducted concurrently to meet the vision for the Valley. First and foremost, 
identifying and developing a team approach between the U.S. and Mexico  
to address the sediment and trash issues will be of the highest priority. The 
interconnectivity of the Priority Action Areas is described below. 

Interconnection of Priority Action Areas - Project Outcomes Inform Future Work

                         Attachment 3



20

Project execution Lifecycle description
Projects within each Priority Action Area will be executed by individual Recovery 
Team stakeholders. The range and extent of implementation will depend on 
the project scope, timing, and internal organizational needs. Generally, capital 
improvement project implementation consists of  four main components:

 » data collection and feasibility assessment,

 » permitting and design,

 » implementation, and

 » operation and maintenance.

Non-capital projects may not require each of the project lifecycle components. 
A brief description of the main project life cycle components is presented below.

data collection and feasibility assessment
Projects begin with a problem that needs to be solved. Prior and during project 
initiation, Recovery Team members will coordinate with each other to assess 
available data and perform appropriate feasibility assessments to evaluate 
alternatives. Activities may include:

 » background data collection and coordination,

 » feasibility assessment — background data leading to a defined project  
 scope, cost estimate, may be combined with permitting and design, and 

 » consideration of capital and long-term operation and maintenance   
 funding mechanisms, if applicable.

Permitting and design
Federal, state, and environmental approvals, as well as consensus from project 
stakeholders and the public are required at the permitting and design stage. 
Contract plans and specifications, cost estimates, and contracting processes are 
also required. Permit components include:

 » environmental permitting documents,

 » draft environmental document and public review and comment, and

 » final environmental document certification and approval.

Engineering studies support design, environmental evaluation, and address 
stakeholder input and include:  

 » base maps, plan sheets (e.g., 30, 60 and 100% designs),
 » plans, specifications, and estimate package, and
 » construction contract(s) and other agreements.

implementation
For capital projects, the implementation component includes:

 » constructed physical improvement — follows the applicable federal, state,  
 and local guidelines,

 » as-built plans — includes plan changes during construction, and

 » environmental compliance certificates.

operate and Maintain
Many capital projects envisioned in the Valley will need ongoing operation and 
maintenance that will require:

 » dedicated, reliable sources of funding,
 » maintenance agreement(s), and
 » planning to assess the long-term effectiveness of the project.

Summary
The following section presents a preliminary schedule for possible projects 
associated with each of the seven Priority Action Areas identified by the Recovery 
Team.  These actions are required to successfully and cost-efficiently implement 
the diverse array of projects identified in this Recovery Strategy that will have 
benefits across the multiple management areas previously described.

Interconnection of Priority Action Areas - Project Outcomes Inform Future Work

                         Attachment 3



Data Feasibility Design & Permit Implement Operate & Maintain                  Potential Phases Ongoing21

a. Partner with Mexico to implement optimum, Watershed-based Solutions       
Specific projects to be determined through bi-national partnerships and the Recovery Team

B. Understand How Water, Sediment and trash flow
1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling

2. Sediment and Trash Load Calibration Study

3. Bi-national Sediment and Trash Control Plan

c. reduce Sources of Sediment and trash
4. Sediment Source Control Implementation Program

5. Trash Source Control Implementation Program

6. Regular Trash Removal - U.S.

7. Trash Removal Programs - Mexico

d. implement Sediment and trash capture devices in Watershed
8. Design and Implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s Gulch

9. Sediment Capture Implementation - Mexico

10. Design and Implementation of Floatable Trash Capture Device(s)

11. Storm Drain System Trash Capture Device(s) Assessment - U.S.

12. Trash Capture Implementation - Mexico

e. fund and Perform ongoing operations and Maintenance Work
13. Local Integrated Sediment and Trash Processing Site

14. Nearshore Sediment Reuse/Beach Replenishment Project In Progress

15. Nelson and Sloan Quarry Reclamation In Progress (Feasibility phase)

16. Reuse Construction Grade Material - Contract Terms and Conditions Recommendations

17. Long-term Operations and Maintenance Financing

f. involve and inform community in Mexico and U.S.
18. Recovery Team Administration, Website Management and Media Support

19. Cross-border Notification Network

g. Protect and enhance natural resources
20. Climate Change Analysis and Planning

21. Integrated Floodplain Management Alternatives Analysis

22. Restore River Hydrology

23. Restore Estuary

24. Implement the Tijuana River Valley Invasive Plant Control Program In Progress

25. Establish Native Plant Cover and Weed Control on Border Infrastructure System In Progress

26. Acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers In Progress

27. Agricultural Land Management Strategy

ESTIMATED PROJECT SCHEDULE 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



Data Feasibility Design & Permit Implement Operate & Maintain                  Potential Phases Ongoing 22

The international border serves as both a challenge and an opportunity in 
developing and implementing integrated programs to address sediment and 
trash issues.  In practice, a watershed approach to source control and pollution 
prevention is often the most cost-effective management measure strategy 
to control stormwater-borne pollutants. The Recovery Team recognizes that 
although “end-of-pipe” solutions and cleanup can be done in the U.S. portion 
of the watershed, it may not be sufficient to reduce sediment and trash inputs 
to reduce flooding and prevent further degradation of the Valley and estuary.  
Accordingly, effective treatment of sediment and trash requires a combination 
of pollutant source reduction, capture, cleanup activities, policy enhancements, 
and restoration of hydrologic processes in both the U.S. and Mexico portions of 
the watershed. 

A number of mechanisms currently exist for coordinating and funding work 
in Mexico.  Existing mechanisms include the U.S. EPA Border 2020 program,  

U.S. IBWC, San Diego Association of Governments Borders Committee, and 
others. The Recovery Team will work to fully engage the appropriate agencies 
and organizations in Mexico in identifying and implementing an optimum 
suite of source reduction and capture measures in the watershed, as outlined 
below, and utilize existing collaborative bi-national funding mechanisms. In 
practice, this entails jointly advising and reviewing data, and identifying and 
implementing projects through cooperative data sharing. In addition, education 
and coordination activities will be needed among Recovery Team member 
agencies to understand the structure, function and jurisdictional responsibility 
of Mexican agencies tasked with sediment and trash controls.  This will improve 
communication and allow the Recovery Team to recognize and integrate with 
work currently being conducted in Mexico to control sediment and trash.

It is critical to understand how water and sediment flow in order to develop an 
effective, integrated program for cost-efficient sediment and trash management 
and long-term recovery for the Valley. Sediment and trash accumulation and 
associated flood risk to public infrastructure and private property present costly 
environmental and management issues for Valley stakeholders. Many hydrology 
and hydraulic studies have been conducted in the Valley to understand how 
water flows for a variety of specific purposes, but some of this work is outdated 
or not relevant.  In addition, only recently have studies focused on analysis 
of peak flows in the main Tijuana River, runoff volume and duration during 
extreme storm events, and assessed production and distribution of sediment 

in the main river and tributary canyon drainages specifically for the purpose 
of reducing sediment, trash and flood risk. Focused hydrological and hydraulic 
studies will jointly inform and allow collaborative bi-national solutions to be 
developed for:  (1) restoration of the river and estuary to optimize flows for 
flood control and natural sediment transport to the ocean, (2) cost-benefit 
analysis of optimum management actions to control sediment and trash at the 
source(s) in the watershed and in the Valley, and (3) development of design, 
siting and sizing criteria for sediment and trash capture infrastructure in both 
the U.S. and Mexico portions of the watershed. 

B. Understand How Water, Sediment and trash flow
1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling

2. Sediment and Trash Load Calibration Study

3. Bi-national Sediment and Trash Control Plan

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

a. Partner with Mexico to implement optimum, Watershed-based Solutions       
Specific projects to be determined through bi-national partnerships and the Recovery Team.

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



23

1. Watershed Hydrological and Hydraulic Modeling
Project will perform hydrology and hydraulics modeling based on current 
conditions.  Project will re-evaluate the extent of the 25- and 100-year floodplains 
using LIDAR and other available data. Expected results: identification of current 
flow characteristics that may be used for sediment and trash management, 
delineation of 25- and 100-year floodplain boundaries, and data to inform other 
policy and project implementation decisions. 

2. Sediment and trash Load calibration Study 
Desktop and field measurement study of sediment and trash loads in the Tijuana 
River watershed at key locations. Project will inform source reduction and 
management practice implementation planning and cost-benefit analysis for 
activities such as erosion, sediment, and trash control education and outreach, 
slope/road stabilization, and siting for sediment basins and/or trash capture. 
Expected results: data to calibrate sediment transport model(s). 

3. Bi-national Sediment and trash control Plan
Watershed-based study to determine the feasibility, expected benefits, and 
operations and maintenance requirements for various types of sediment and 
trash management activities and/or capture devices. Project will include cost-
benefit analysis for site-specific and watershed-based alternatives.  Expected 
results: coordinated source control, conceptual design, siting options and 
preliminary (30%) engineering design for selected capture devices. 

Sources of sediment and trash derived from both sides of the border contribute 
to ecosystem degradation, water quality concerns, and other problems that 
threaten the watershed. Education and outreach, and pollution prevention and 
source control projects are required to stop impacts from sediment and trash. The 
success of these types of programs depends on planning and implementation 
that will require time and significant political and economic investment on both 
sides of the border.  Accordingly, results from partnership projects conducted 
under Priority Action Area A (Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, 
Watershed-based Solutions) will be used to identify specific watershed-based 
source reduction activities. 

c1. Sediment
Sources of anthropogenic sediment exist on both sides of the border. In the U.S., 
significant effort has been directed toward development and implementation 
of land development, construction practice, and post-construction erosion 
control and sediment management policies over the past several decades.  
While this work has resulted in significant reductions in sediment loads from 
human activities, more work can be done.  
    
4. Sediment Source control implementation Program 
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A 
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and  

Watershed hydrology and hydraulic modeling informs many Recovery Strategy components

c. reduce Sources of Sediment and trash
4. Sediment Source Control Implementation Program

5. Trash Source Control Implementation Program

6. Regular Trash Removal - U.S.

7. Trash Removal Programs - Mexico

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



24

B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions 
such as: road and slope stabilization, erosion/sediment control guidance and 
incentives for development projects, legislation to enhance municipal codes and 
enforcement activities, and outreach for effective erosion control and sediment 
management practices. Expected results: source reduction of sediment.

c2. trash
Traditional source control activities include education and outreach efforts 
focused on proper disposal, various activities to reduce litter and illegal disposal  
and policy improvements to encourage recycling and other beneficial activities.  
Recently, in the U.S., efforts to ban products have emerged as a potentially 
viable pollution prevention strategy.  

5. trash Source control implementation Program
Informed by the results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A 
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and 
B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as: improved trash collection services, illegal disposal abatement, legislation 
to provide incentives for recycling and disposal, and community-based social 
marketing outreach. Expected results: source reduction of trash.

6. regular trash removal- U.S.
Fund and continue to implement partnership program for Recovery Team 
stakeholders and volunteer groups/non-governmental organizations to perform 
manual trash and tire removal activities in the Valley. Project to include disposal 
costs. Expected results: removal of quantifiable amounts of accumulated trash. 

7. trash removal Programs- Mexico
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Area A (Partner 
with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions), implement 
actions such as: trash collection enhancements, plastic and tire recycling 
program improvements, illegal dumping abatement/enforcement, community-
based social marketing outreach, and regular trash removal programs. Expected 
results: removal of quantifiable amounts of accumulated trash.

In addition to source control, capture of sediment and trash pollutants is a 
necessary component for the long-term recovery of the Valley. The Recovery 
Team recognizes that source control and pollution prevention on both sides of 
the border are the first steps in reducing the amount of sediment and trash that 
will need to be treated to protect the designated beneficial uses of receiving 
waters.  However, successful implementation of sediment and trash reduction 

activities will improve the cost-effectiveness, but not eliminate the need for 
implementing capture devices at strategic locations in the watershed.  Factors 
such as land use, drainage area, and configuration of stormwater conveyance 
systems will determine the effectiveness of capture devices and/or strategies. 
In addition, the effectiveness of capture devices is dependent on performance 
of regular operation and maintenance activities. Sediment and trash capture 

Trash removal programs such as manual trash removal can cost-effectively reduce trash sources

d. implement Sediment and trash capture devices in Watershed
8. Design and Implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s Gulch

9. Sediment Capture Implementation - Mexico

10. Design and Implementation of Floatable Trash Capture Device(s)

11. Storm Drain System Trash Capture Device(s) Assessment - U.S.

12. Trash Capture Implementation - Mexico

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



25

implementation  projects  in both the U.S. and Mexico will depend on the 
outcome of Priority Project Areas A (Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, 
Watershed-based Solutions) and B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash 
Flow). The success of these types of programs is dependent on understanding 
that planning and implementation will require time and significant resource 
investment from partners in both the U.S. and Mexico. 

d1. Sediment
Sediment capture alternatives include on-site detention basins, regional basins 
designed to treat at the sub-watershed level, and large end-of-drainage area 
basins in the Valley.  

8. design and implementation of Sediment Basin in Smuggler’s gulch
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand 
How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), this project will develop engineering 
design and permitting for sediment capture device(s) for low-medium flows 
provided this approach is deemed feasible and cost-effective. This project will 
ultimately include construction. Expected results: siting, permitting, 100% 
engineering design, and construction for sediment removal device(s).

9. Sediment capture implementation- Mexico
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Areas A  (Partner 
with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and B 
(Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as road paving/stabilization, non-vegetated slope stabilization, local/regional 
sediment basin implementation. Expected results: sediment load reduction.

d2. trash
Trash capture alternatives include: mechanized removal of trash and litter from 
urban areas, improvements to urban drainage conveyance systems to reduce 
trash transport, and trash capture nets or screens located within drainage 
conveyances.  

10. design and implementation of floatable trash capture device(s)
Informed by results of work conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand 
How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), provide engineering design and 
permitting for trash capture device(s) for low-medium flows, provided this 
approach is deemed feasible and cost-effective. This project will ultimately 
include construction. Expected results: siting, permitting, 100% engineering 
design, and construction for trash removal device(s) and associated trash load 
reduction.

11. Storm drain System trash capture device(s) assessment - U.S.
Storm drain system capture devices can include hydrodynamic separators (flow-
through structures with a settling or separation unit to remove trash, sediment, 
and other pollutants), catch basin inserts, inlet filters and other devices. Project 
aims to assess feasibility, design and potentially construct storm drain system 
capture devices in key locations.  Expected results: sediment and trash pollutant 
load reductions. Expected results: trash load reductions.

12. trash capture implementation - Mexico
Informed by results of projects conducted under Priority Action Areas A  
(Partner with Mexico to Implement Optimum, Watershed-based Solutions) and 
B (Understand How Water, Sediment and Trash Flow), implement actions such 
as: storm drain system trash capture devices, improved street sweeping, trash 
capture nets and screens in channels and/or drainages. Expected results: trash 
load reductions.

Trash capture devices can include nets (left) or concrete and steel structures (right)

                         Attachment 3



26

The major challenge of capturing sediment and trash material in basins and 
managed natural channels is budgeting and funding the annual O&M activities 
that include:  excavation, sorting, and disposal. While source reduction measures 
throughout the watershed will reduce the volume and frequency of this work, 
operation and maintenance of existing and new sediment and trash capture 
infrastructure must be considered as a long-term, ongoing need. Initial work to 
fund operations and maintenance activities can generally be divided into two 
major components, as described below. 

e1. reduce annual o&M costs with joint operations and Local 
reuse of Sediment 
The members of the Recovery Team that conduct annual O&M activities have 
joined forces to reduce annual costs by creating local uses for sediment and 
by implementing joint sediment processing. To expedite these methods taking  
effect, collaborative environmental permitting review and joint operation 
agreements will be imperative. These projects are summarized below.

13. Local integrated Sediment and trash Processing Site 
Joint sediment and trash management location for the sediment captured in 
the Goat Canyon sediment basins and resulting from other excavation activities 
elsewhere in the Valley.   Expected results: centralized cost-efficient processing 
of excavated material. 

14. nearshore Sediment reuse/Beach replenishment Project in Progress

Continue placing sediment on the beach adjacent to Border Field State Park and 
TRNERR.  This project originated as a pilot under the Tijuana Estuary Sediment 

Fate and Transport Study and is currently authorized under Department 
of Army Permit (SPL-2008-00812-RRS). Sediment may also be placed in the 
nearshore environment through an agreement with the City of Imperial Beach 
in accordance with the Sand Compatible Opportunistic Use Project (SCOUP) 
Plan. Expected results: cost-efficient reuse and environmentally beneficial 
placement of captured sediment for beach replenishment. 

15. nelson and Sloan Quarry reclamation in Progress 

Implement the Reclamation Plan for the Nelson and Sloan property (also known 
as the Border Highlands Borrow Pit) using sediment excavated from Valley 
sources. Expected results: beneficial reuse of captured sediment to reclaim 
sand and gravel mine in conformance with the original conditional use permit 
and reclamation plan, cost-efficiently place sediment excavated from Valley 
sources, and improve habitat through revegetation of severely eroded slopes.  

16. reuse construction grade Material- 
contract terms and conditions 
recommendations 
Development of standardized terms and 
conditions for contracts with material operators 
to responsibly distribute construction grade 
material obtained from sediment operation and 
maintenance activities in the Valley.  Expected 
results: increase beneficial reuse of material 
and improve sediment placement tracking. 

e. fund and Perform ongoing operations and Maintenance Work
13. Local Integrated Sediment and Trash Processing Site

14. Nearshore Sediment Reuse/Beach Replenishment Project In Progress

15. Nelson and Sloan Quarry Reclamation In Progress (Feasibility phase)

16. Reuse Construction Grade Material - Contract Terms and Conditions Recommendations

17. Long-term Operations and Maintenance Financing

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



27

e2. Secure Long-term financing for o&M activities
Development of a sustainable financing mechanism must occur to ensure 
that O&M can be accomplished annually, and to responsibly invest in future 
infrastructure. Traditional O&M mechanisms include establishing an endowment 
or cooperative agreements for management; however, identifying sources for 
capitalizing the fund will require consultation with financial and legal advisors.

17. Long-term operations and Maintenance financing
Develop government, philanthropic, and/or other innovative sponsorship and 
revenue-generating activities to secure long-term O&M funding for sediment 
and trash control activities. Expected results: dedicated funding for various 
sediment and trash control projects.

Effective and fully functional bi-national partnerships are integral to 
successfully reducing sediment and trash-related problems and improving the 
quality of the environment along the international border. Given the key role 
that source control and pollution prevention activities have in reducing costs to 
protect and cleanup the Valley, a collaborative and comprehensive education 
and outreach program is needed.  Stakeholders may then leverage existing 
education and outreach activities bi-nationally and work together to develop 
new and more effective programs to increase awareness, change behavior and 
improve conditions contributing to sediment and trash issues on both sides of 
the border.

18. recovery team administration, Website Management and Media 
Support
Develop ongoing administrative support for the Recovery Team with provisions 
for development and maintenance of its website, popular media support and 
technical information exchange between U.S. and Mexico resource agencies. 
Expected results: continuous  Recovery Team administrative support to improve 
project implementation/coordination opportunities.

19. cross-border  notification network
Develop an effective, streamlined cross-border project coordination and 
notification network and a process to advise key agencies/staff on the status of 
water quality and other issues affecting human and ecosystem health. Expected 
results: improved international communication; potential to reduce various 
environmental and human health impacts from pollutants in the Tijuana River 
watershed.

Recovery Team administrative support is needed to facilitate communication

f. involve and inform community in Mexico and U.S.
18. Recovery Team Administration, Website Management and Media Support

19. Cross-border Notification Network

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



28

The Valley and estuary is one of the largest and least developed coastal wetland 
ecosystems in southern California. Despite significant disturbance from 
human activities in the Valley and adjacent metropolitan areas, protection and 
restoration efforts have resulted in an improvement in habitat and ecological 
function over the past several decades. Informed by results of projects 
conducted under Priority Action Area B (Understand How Water, Sediment and 
Trash Flow), projects are needed to restore the river flows and estuary tidal 
prism to reduce flooding, re-establish natural sediment transport to the ocean, 
and regain the productivity and resilience of the ecosystem.  
 
20. climate change analysis and Planning
Analysis to assess the potential 
impacts of sea level rise and 
changing watershed inputs to 
develop long-term planning 
needs. Expected results: 
prediction of habitat migration; 
identification of potential 
impacts to infrastructure and 
property; development of 
climate change adaptation 
plans. 

21. integrated floodplain Management alternatives analysis
Develop a feasibility-stage alternatives analysis to determine the technical 
viability of integrated flood control, vegetation maintenance, and invasive 
species management alternatives in the Valley.  Expected results: development 
of cost-efficient alternatives to reduce flood risk for residents and infrastructure 
in the Valley, improve ecosystem function and transport of sediment from river 
to ocean, reduce the presence of invasive plant species and plan for river and 
estuary resiliency to climate change. This project may also lead to management 
alternatives for flow impediments such as berms, the Brown Fill and other flow-
impeding obstacles.  

22. restore river Hydrology
Develop plans to restore the Valley to a naturally connected system of estuarine, 
riparian, transitional and upland habitats allowed to function as a braided river 
system with the associated capacity to naturally transport stormwater flows 
and sediment to the ocean.  It is recognized that this goal will be balanced with 
flood protection of infrastructure, respect for existing land uses, and recreational 
opportunities. Expected results: sustainable hydrological connectivity between 
land and ocean with ecosystem capacity to beneficially manage sediment 
transport. 

g. Protect and enhance natural resources
20. Climate Change Analysis and Planning

21. Integrated Floodplain Management Alternatives Analysis

22. Restore River Hydrology

23. Restore Estuary

24. Implement the Tijuana River Valley Invasive Plant Control Program In Progress

25. Establish Native Plant Cover and Weed Control on Border Infrastructure System In Progress

26. Acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers In Progress

27. Agricultural Land Management Strategy

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

                         Attachment 3



29

23. restore estuary 
A Feasibility and Preliminary Design Study was completed in 2008.  The next 
phase will include design and environmental compliance with products such 
as engineering cost estimates, designs and specifications, environmental 
compliance documents, and permit applications. Expected results: ecosystem 
restoration to improve tidal prism and overall ecosystem value.

24. implement the tijuana river valley invasive Plant control Program in 

Progress

Implementation of the ongoing Program is guided by mapping of target 
species distributions, a control plan, programmatic environmental permits, and 
ongoing research and monitoring of treatment methods. Since its inception in 
2002, the Program has treated invasive plants within 1,752 acres. A Technical 

Advisory Group meets annually to prioritize work. Current high priorities 
include eradicating tamarisk from the main river channel through the estuary, 
establishing protocols to minimize spread of Arundo donax by ground disturbing 
maintenance activities, and providing a means to check whether completed 
control/revegetation areas exist in the footprint of planned work in the Valley. 
Expected results: prevent the spread of invasive species and reduce the impacts 
caused by invasive species to the Valley’s sensitive ecological habitats.

25. establish native Plant cover and Weed control on Border 
infrastructure System in Progress

In October 2011, U.S. Customs and Border Protection began a perennial 
enhancement revegetation effort in Smuggler’s Gulch using native shrub 
species and a drip irrigation system.  The primary goals of the revegetation are 
to prevent erosion and reduce the invasive species on the staging areas, access 
routes, and cut-and-fill slopes temporarily disturbed during the construction of 
the Border Infrastructure System (BIS).   Plant and irrigation system installation 
is expected to be completed by March 2012, with monitoring and management 
expected to last through 2015. Expected results: reduction of sediment loads 
and improved water quality.

26. acquire Private Property from Willing Sellers in Progress

A coordinated effort by federal, state, and local governments to purchase private 
property in the Valley from willing sellers has resulted in the purchase of over 
1,700 acres since the 1980s. This effort is complemented by ongoing efforts 
in Mexico to secure conservation easements in open space areas. Expected 
results: reduced risks to public health and safety from flooding and erosion and 
improved natural habitat connectivity.

27. agriculture Land Management Strategy
Develop a management strategy for agricultural land as it becomes available 
through acquisition from willing sellers or retirement of existing leases. 
Expected results:  reduce soil erosion and loading of pesticides and fertilizers 
that could negatively affect sediment and water quality.

Preliminary designs for restoration in 
the southern portion of the estuary 
were completed in 2008

                         Attachment 3



Recovery Team Actions in the Regulatory Environment

A primary driver for the formation of the Recovery Team was the listing of the 
Tijuana River as impaired for sediment, trash and several other water quality 
pollutants under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act.  Federal law requires that 
Total Maximum Daily Loads be developed to reduce the sources of impairment 
in 303(d)-listed waterbodies.  However the bi-national nature of the Tijuana 
River watershed, the number of agency and private stakeholders and other 
factors led the Regional Board to consider the collaborative stakeholder-led 
Recovery Strategy approach.  

In response to the need for an increased understanding of the Tijuana River 
Valley and watershed within the context of resource management agency 
responsibilities/missions and across the U.S.-Mexico Border, a stakeholder 
workshop series was conducted. The three workshop series:

 » informed the development of the Recovery Strategy,

 » served as a collaborative process vehicle to inform stakeholders and  
 integrate recovery strategies in the Valley,

 » linked policy and science with agency stakeholder responsibility roles, and

 » allowed sharing of multiple perspectives of recovery goals across  
 stakeholder groups.

Over 50 stakeholders attended each workshop and post-workshop surveys 
were delivered by TRNERR’s Coastal Training Program.  The surveys reported a 
95% increase in awareness of collaboration opportunities.  

The Regional Board is one of a number of governmental agencies established 
to enforce regulations pertaining to maintaining and restoring water quality, 
protecting habitat and sensitive species, and managing cultural and other 
resources. Within the Recovery Team, these agencies include: U.S. IBWC, the 
EPA, U.S. Army Corp of Engineers, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the California 
Department of Fish and Game, the California State Water Resources Control Board, 
the Regional Board, and others.  Each of these agencies has specific, and often 
independent processes to review and approve projects conducted under their  
jurisdictional authority. 

The Recovery Team provides a forum for coordinating regulatory processes 
and project review that can meet the needs of individual stakeholders while 
benefitting the overall recovery of the Valley and the watershed.  Communication 
and early collaboration among project stakeholders and regulatory agencies is 
key to this process.  The collaborative nature of the Recovery Team promotes 
the development of a comprehensive permitting approach for projects that will 
restore the Valley in a manner consistent with existing laws and regulations and 
in concert with the overall vision of the Recovery Team.  

30

Collaborative Recovery Team visioning workshop to identify priority action areas 

Participants in the stakeholder workshops contribute to the development of strategies for Valley recovery

                         Attachment 3



 » assessment - Includes the collection and assessment of data and other  
 information to determine priority project implementation needs. 

 » Planning - Identifies and prioritizes measures to effectively and cost- 
 efficiently reduce sediment and trash sources while balancing flood risk,  
 ecosystem management, and recreational opportunity needs. 

 » implementation - Employs priority projects in an integrated and  
 collaborative approach that may include bi-national cooperation,  
 interagency coordination, and/or cost-sharing components. 

 » effectiveness assessment - Evaluates project implementation activities  
 to refine future planning and implementation efforts.

It is anticipated that the adaptive management strategy will be applied both to 
specific project implementation assessments as well as assessment of overall 
progress toward long-term recovery goals. Approximately six months prior to 
the end of this initial phase of recovery, the Recovery Team will begin a planning 
process to evaluate findings and to develop an action plan for additional 
implementation activities and priority projects. 

The Recovery Team recognizes the importance of continuing to work 
collaboratively to implement actions to achieve its vision. The member agencies 
of the Recovery Team have developed a Letter of Commitment, a simple 
formalization of the relationship between the land managers and operating 
agencies that serves as a basis for collaboration in implementing priority 
projects. The Letter of Commitment recognizes that collaboration can be 
limited to individual agency responsibilities, jurisdictions, and legal mandates 
and is subject to the availability of funding. 

Moving forward, the land managers and operating agencies will be signatories 
to the Letter of Commitment and will serve as the Steering Committee for the 
Recovery Team.  Other Recovery Team stakeholders that are not signatories to 
the Letter of Commitment will be Members of Good Standing. These include: the 
environmental community, scientific community, and Valley stakeholders, such 
as private land owners and users. Additionally, the Recovery Team recognizes 
the importance of collaboration with agencies and organizations in Mexico and 
has agreed to jointly communicate common messages regarding its activities. 
Mexican agencies, environmental groups, and scientific organizations are also 
welcomed to the Recovery Team.

The Regional Board will serve as sponsor signatory to the Recovery Team and 
believes the Recovery Team is an innovative model that could demonstrate how 
water quality improvements can be made without the contentious and costly 
regulatory and legal remedies typically employed. The Regional Board also 
agrees to hold in abeyance its legal and regulatory options relevant to addressing 
sediment and trash issues while the Recovery Team pursues implementation 
of the priority projects identified in this document. This in no way limits the 
Regional Board’s regulatory and legal options, but, instead, shows a reciprocal 
respect for progress, provided that the signatories below are making a good 
faith effort to work collaboratively to implement the priority projects.  Progress 
toward implementing the priority projects to achieve the vision for the Valley 
will be assessed after a two-year period.  At that time, the Letter of Commitment 
will be renewed and/or revised by employing an iterative planning cycle. The 
planning cycle will include a four-part adaptive management strategy: 

Next Steps for the Recovery Team 

31

                         Attachment 3



The Recovery Strategy is intended to initiate the first phase of actions 
required to cleanup the Valley so its beneficial uses can be restored and 
the environmental and human values that the Valley supports can be 
maintained in perpetuity.  Through this document, the Recovery Team 
has taken a significant step to document the existing conditions related 
to sediment and trash issues in the Valley, and outline solutions that 
will allow beneficial uses of the Valley and its resources to be achieved. 
Resolution to the sediment and trash problems will require alignment 
of enhanced relationships, partnerships, and funding mechanisms in the 
U.S. and in Mexico to provide watershed-based solutions. Accordingly, the 
Recovery Team stakeholders recognize the benefit of using a collaborative 
approach to build and enhance cross-border communication and 
relationships that will lead to our common goals of a healthy Valley and 
watershed.

For more information please contact:
Charles Cheng, Ph.D., P.G.
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region
9174 Sky Park Court, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92123-4340
Phone 858-627-3930
Fax 858-571-6972
Email: ccheng@waterboards.ca.gov

 
Or visit the Regional Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/

Recovery Strategy Summary

Images contained in the Recovery Strategy
have been provided by:

California Coastal Conservancy
California State Parks
Carl Nettleton (OpenOceans Global)
City of San Diego
County of San Diego
Tijuana River National Estuarine Research Reserve
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
URS Corporation
WiLDCOAST

Photo Credits

 » Audubon Society
 » California Coastal Commission
 » California Coastal Conservancy
 » California Department of  

Conservation, Office of Mining  
and Reclamation

 » California Department of Fish and  
Game

 » California Department of Resources  
Recovery and Recycling (CalRecycle)

 » California Environmental Protection  
Agency

 » California State Parks
 » California State Water Resources  

Control Board
 » City of Imperial Beach
 » City of San Diego
 » County of San Diego
 » International Boundary and Water  

Commission
 » National Marine Fisheries Service
 » National Oceanic and Atmospheric  

Administration 
 » OpenOceans Global

 » San Diego Coastkeeper
 » San Diego County Water Authority
 » San Diego Regional Water Quality  

Control Board
 » San Diego State University
 » Scripps Institution of Oceanography 
 » Southern California Coastal Water  

Research Project
 » Southwest Wetlands Interpretive  

Association
 » State Coastal Conservancy
 » Surfrider
 » Tijuana River National Estuarine 

Research Reserve
 » Tijuana River Valley Equestrian  

Association (TRVEA)
 » U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
 » U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
 » U.S. Customs and Border Patrol
 » U.S. Department of Agriculture
 » U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency
 » U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
 » U.S. Navy

Tijuana River Valley Recovery Team
The Recovery Team consists of the following member agencies 
and organizations:

32

The TRVRT would like to especially thank:

 
for providing funding to support the development of the Strategy.

Sempra Energy FoundationCalifornia State Water 
Resources Control Board

                         Attachment 3



                         Attachment 3

































































































6.3






















	Agenda
	Item No. 2.1
	Item No. 2.2
	Item No. 2.3
	Item No. 2.4
	Item No. 2.5
	Item No. 4.1
	Item No. 5.1
	Item No. 6.1
	Item No. 6.2
	Item No. 6.3
	Item No. 6.4
	Item No. 7.1



